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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, Investors, and Partners of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation,

The year 2023 continued to be a challenging year for the global economy and Vietnam in particular. The
unpredictable fluctuations in the global economic and geopolitical environment have posed significant
challenges to Vietnam's export activities, including the textile industry. With most of our revenue coming from
export markets, particularly the United States and Europe, the shortage of orders from foreign partners has

significantly impacted our company's production and business situation.

However, under the close direction of the leadership of Vietnam National Textile & Garment Group, the supportand
cooperation from our esteemed partners, the backing from our shareholders, and particularly the determination
of our management team and all employees, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation has overcome
these difficulties and achieved the production and business targets set for 2023. This result once again affirms

the cautious yet correct steps the company has taken on its path to sustainable development.

Looking ahead to 2024, the textile industry shows signs of recovery, yet many challenges and difficulties still
loom. To ensure business effectiveness and create sustainable value for our shareholders, partners, employees,
and the community, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation will continue to focus on deep investment
in upgrading machinery and equipment, enhancing research and innovation, undergoing digital transformation,
and implementing flexible management solutions to adapt well to the volatile business environment and meet

increasingly high standards of customers and markets.

With a correct strategic direction, specific goals, and solid internal strength, supported by both domestic and
international partners, and with the dedicated attention of the leadership of the Vietnam National Textile &
Garment Group, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation is confident and determined to achieve the

production and business targets for 2024.
On behalf of the company's leadership, | would like to express my gratitude to all our shareholders, partners,
customers, and all employees for your support and partnership throughout the past. We hope to continue

receiving your trust and cooperation on the sustainable development journey of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment.

Sincerely,

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Nguyen Duc Tri
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n COMPANY’'S OVERVIEW

= Trading Name: HOA THO TEXTILE - GARMENT JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

= English Name: HOA THO TEXTILE — GARMENT JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

= Securities Code: HTG

= Chartered Capital: 360,027,080,000 VND

= Address: No. 36 Ong Ich Khiem Street, Hoa Tho Dong Ward, Cam Le District, Da Nang City
= Telephone: (+84) 2363 846 290

= Fax: (+84) 2363 846 216

=  Website: www.hoatho.com.vn

= Email: office@hoatho.com.vn

= Business Registration Certificate No.: 0400101556 issued by the Da Nang City Department
of Planning and Investment for the first time on January 30, 2007, with the 24th amendment

registered on June 19, 2023.
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INCORPORATION AND DEVELOPMENT

: Successfully organized an initial publid'
offering at Hoa Tho Textile and Garment,
a state-owned limited liability company,
with a total of 900,000 shares sold and
an average sale price of VND 12,249
per share. On November 15, 2006, the

company transitioned to a joint-stock

When Da Nang City was company named Hoa Tho Textile -

The company received

liberated, Hoa Tho Textile Garment Joint Stock Corporation under

the Securities Registration

Factory was taken over The company was renamed the business registration certificate No.
Certificate  No. 171/2010
by the government and Hoa Tho Textile and Garment 3203001300 issued on January 30, 2007, X 4 d
i . GCNCP-VSD from the Vietnam

resumed operations on Company according to by the Da Nang Department of Planning
i . e Securities Depository, with a

April 21, 1975. decision No. 433/QD-TCLD C R and Investment with an initial charter

total of 9,650,000 registered

of the Vietnam Textile
shares.

\\\ Corporation. ’

1
1
1
1

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment The company transitioned to On July 2, 2007, Hoa Tho

into a state-owned enterprise named

Joint  Stock  Corporation a one-member limited liability it Textile - Garment Joint

Hoa Tho Textile Company according

was established, originally state-owned company, Hoa Stock Corporation was

known as Hoa Tho Textile topthelestabliSENECEe Tho Textile and Garment, approved by the State

241/TCLbD dated March 24,1993, by

Factory (SICOVINA) under the by decision No. 200/2005/ Securities Commission of
Vietnam Textile Company. U M'mSty e i e Qb-TTg on August 8, 2005, Vietnam (SSC) for public
issued by the Prime Minister. company registration.
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02 INCORPORATION AND DEVELOPMENT

Based on the resolution of the

annual

general

shareholders'

meeting, a plan was approved to

issue shares for the management

and

employees  who

significantly

contributed

have

to

the development of Hoa Tho

Textile

and

Garment

Joint

Stock Company. The company

successfully sold 750,000 shares,

The Chairman of the
SSC issued Registration
Certificate  number 81/
UBCK-GCN for Hoa Tho
Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Company, approving
the registration for public
offering of shares, increasing
the charter capital to VND
150,000,000,000.

1[2]’ ﬁfrllpual Report 2023

e

increasing the charter capital to 2=
VND 157,500,000,000.

\
AY

\
1

Following a plan to issue shares for

On February 23, 2017,
the company completed
a capital increase to
VND 225,000,000,000. In
June 2017, the company

officially registered to
trade on the UPCOM
exchange under the

trading name HTG. Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Company
is a member unit of the
Vietnam National Textile &
Garment Group (Vinatex)
and the Vietnam Textile
and Apparel Association
(Vitas), which is part of
the Ministry of Industry
and Trade. ’

managerial staff who contributed

significantly to the company’s

development,

787,500

shares

were successfully sold, increasing
VND
165,375,000,000. The company

the charter

filed and

capital

received the Public

Offering Securities Registration
Certificate No. 83/GCN-UBCKNN

on December 19, 2016.

T
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The company

added retail food in
specialized stores
to its business

activities.

According to the
resolution of the annual
general shareholders'
meeting, which approved
the issuance plan for
managerial  staff  who

have made significant
contributions to the
development of Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Company, the
company
sold 1,125,000
increasing its charter capital

to VND 236,250,000,000. I/

successfully

shares,

/
,“According

to the 2022 annual .

general meeting resolution regarding

According to the 2023 annual
general resolution No.
19/NQ-BHDBCD on April 15, 2023,

the company successfully issued

meeting

5,999,633 shares, raising the charter
capital to VND 360,027,080,000.

Notably, in early November 2023, the
company officially listed its shares
on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock
Exchange, showcasing the brand’s

credibility and the transparency of its

*. financial and corporate governance.
AY

dividend payment through stock

issuance, the company successfully

issued 6,378,750 shares, increasing

the charter capital VND
300,030,750,000.
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03 ACHIEVEMENTS AND AWARDS IN 2023

cHUON Tk
THIOING HIEL QUG UA VIET HAM

CHUNG NHAN
TGNG CONG TY CF DET MAY HOA THD

- I e T G
Syt Hng Dty

Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Company has been certified
as a National Brand Enterprise for
the period 2022-2024.

B CONG THUONG CONG HOA XA HOL CHD NGHIA VIET NaM
S e 1 - Ty do - Fignh phie

5532 FSgpncr i Wi, mgéey AY theimg AL, miim 2033

QUYET BINII
Vi vife phé duyit v chng b6 Danh sich
“Doanh nghifp auil kbiu wy tin® wim 2022

BO TRUGNG B) CONG THUONG

Cdn et Noii dinh 16 O6T022NE-CP wgdy 29 thdng [} adm 2022 cda
Chindz plk quy dink v chute ndng, whide vt gualn haw v oo edu 16 chic cia
B4 Cing Thirerey,

Cin e Quwit dinks sid O1TQB-RCT rpdy 12 thrg 4 miim 2019 ciier 85
trutimg B5 Ciing Thieomg vf vie ban hinie Qhaye cbd et chan Daanh nghigp wudt
iy g tin:

i v 15 J028BCT-AVK ngéy 19 thing 3 mim 2023 ciia B
i xdt chym Doank ngiigp st K iy 1 ndon 20227

Thhen dé mghtj coier £ I Coac Xt b Badu

QUYET DINH:

i 1. Phii duyit v oing b davh sich “Doanh ophidp suift khiu ay "
nhim 2022 ban hanh kém thes Quyét dink ndy.

ity 2. Quyds dinh raby 06 hiu e thi b kd 1l ngy ki

Pidu 3. Chinh Vin phéag B3, Cyc tnring Coc
cht §is Céing Thaereg, Chil tich Higp bii nyinh hi F
tEn trong danh shch ban hdnh kim thes Cuydt disk vh ed
Lién quan chiu trach ohigm thi hinh Chayés dinh ndy./

KT. BQ TRUONG

38-35930 F379 * soorw Tha VienPhapl aut

* TRE 84
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s VI XNK f i1 Ay
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Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock

Company achieved the title of reputable

export enterprise in 2023.

14 | Annual Report 2023

Téng Céing fy €0 phin Dt May Hoa Thg.

DOANH KGHIEP TEEU G840 Vi NGUGYLAD BGING NGANKDST MAY VYT HAM NAM 2023
Sing nrip vy “Toieoh i e A Mzrww Cng dedn Dée May Vigr Mam,
T chi D5 May wquu_-w)mm " e fam Hnk chon, e bpey.

Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Company received the Certificate of
Outstanding Enterprise for Textile Workers
in 2023.

Ting Cing by i Dilollag Ko Tho
“Doanh nghiép tiéw biéu vi Noudi Iao déng” ndm 2023
e

Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Company achieved the Certificate of
Outstanding Enterprise for its Employees in

2023.

— CHING NHAN
| TONG CONG TY CP DET MAY HOA THO

B TOP 10

Doanh nghigp

EFFICIERCY (Coareidimudne )

=i g Wiy g T ke & b i
St SeBan thark: Bt D fedeg - Wi 2023

ot e ¥ 50 B Takb o i b
o e s s e

O nadden

Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Company was awarded the Top 10 Certificate
for Efficient Energy Use Enterprises in Da

Nang City in 2023.

= =% =% =%

=%

Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Company attained the priority enterprise certification in 2023.

Commendation to Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Company for outstanding achievements

in the Youth Entrepreneurship Movement in Da Nang City in 2023.

Excellence Flag: Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation was awarded the flag for
Excellent Unit among the workers and civil servants group in the youth and children's movement

activities in 2023.

Certificate of Commendation to Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Company for its excellent

achievements in the nationwide Fire Prevention and Fighting Movement in 2023.

Excellence Flag: Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation was awarded the flag for

Excellent Unit in the workers and civil servants movement and trade union activities in 2023.

202N

DOANH[NGHIERITIEUBIEVVIINGUOIIROiBONGI2023

TONG CONG TY CO PHAN DET MAY HOA THO

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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04 MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

BOARD OF ADVISORS:
- Recruitment
- Salary
- Emulation

- Discipline

- Liquidation

- Science Technology
- Labour protection

- Conciliation

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Management

BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

INTERNAL CONTROL
COMMITTEE

ASSOCIATIONS

DEPENDENT
COMPANIES

Hoa Tho spinning
factory 1

Hoa Tho spinning
factory 2

Hoa Tho Garment
Factory 1

Hoa Tho Veston Garment
Factory

Hoa Quy Garment
Factory

Hoa Tho-Dien Ban
Garment Company

Hoa Tho-Dong Ha
Garment Company

Hoa Tho Quang Ngai
Garment Factory

Hoa Tho Que Son
Garment Factory

Hoa Tho Trieu Phong
Garment Factory

Hoa Tho Fashion
Business Center

Hoa Tho commercial
center

16 | Annual Report 2023

OPERATION
DEPARTMENTS

Corporation
Office

Financial and Accounting
Department

Technique & Investment
Department

Living Conditions
Department

Information Technology
Department

Garment Sales
DepartmentNo 1,2, 3,4, 5

Center for Research and
Development of Apparel
Products

Garment Quality
Control Department

Garment Import and
Export Department

Yarn Sales
Department
|
Yarn Technology
Department
|

Legal and General Affairs
Department

SUBSIDIARIES

Hoa Tho Fashion Joint
Stock Company

Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company - Hoi An

Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company - Duy
Xuyen

Hoa Tho Yarn Joint Stock
Company - Thang Binh

Hoa Tho Construction
Mechanical Limited
Liability Company

CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTION
AND ASSOCIATION
COMPANIES

Ho Chi Minh City
Textile and Garment
Trading Joint Stock

Company

Central Cotton Joint
Stock Company

Hoa Tho Packaging Joint
Stock Company -
Quang Da

Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company - Phu Ninh

Hoa Tho Garment Joint
Stock Company -
Quang Nam

Hoa Tho Textile - Garmegt Joint Stock C




04 MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Subsidiaries, associated companies:

Ownership RatioVoting Ratio of the

No. unit Parent Company

General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS): Thisis the highest decision- The subsidiaries

making body of the corporation, consisting of all shareholders with

voting rights. Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock Company

Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Hoi An

Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Duy Xuyen

Board of Directors (BOD): Thisis the managing body of the corporation,

with full authority to make decisions on behalf of the corporation Hoa) 19 Vet < ot Sigels Compemy - el i)

regarding all matters related to its purposes and interests, except for

Hoa Tho Mechanical Construction Single Member Limited
those within the jurisdiction of the General Shareholders' Meeting.

Liability Company

The associated companies

Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Quang Nam 30.61%

Board of Management (BOM): This body manages the daily

operations of the corporation and is accountable to the Board of Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Phu Ninh 20.00%

Directors for the execution of assigned rights and duties.

Board of Supervisors (BOS): This body performs the task of

monitoring on behalf of the shareholders, overseeing all business,

administrative, and operational activities of the corporation.

o s,

18 | Annual Report 2023




05 BUSINESS LINES AND LOCATIONS OF THE BUSINESS

20 Annual Report 2023

BUSINESS LINES

»

»

Domestic Market: Hoa Thohas aprimary distribution network concentrated
in major cities such as Hanoi, Da Nang, and Ho Chi Minh City.

International Market: The company offers a diverse range of products like
suits, trousers, jackets, and protective clothing that meet high standards
and are well-received in stringent markets like the USA, Europe, Japan,

and South Korea.

LOCATIONS OF BUSINESS

»

v

»

v

»

v

»

»

Manufacturing and Trading, Import and Export of Garments, Fabrics, Yarns, Sewing Threads,
Equipment, Raw and Auxiliary Materials, and Textile Industry Components: Engages in the
production and sale of textile and garment products, including the import and export of these
goods.

Manufacturing and Trading of Mechanical Products: Produces and sells mechanical products,
possibly including tools and equipment used in the textile manufacturing process.

Leasing of Fixed Assets and Machinery: Provides leasing services for fixed assets and
equipment, likely to support operations in various sectors.

Real Estate Business, Land Use Rights owned by the owner, users, or leased: Engages in real
estate activities, including buying, selling, and leasing land and properties.

Processing of Steel Frame Structures, Manufacturing, Installation of Air Systems, Pressure
Systems: Involves the fabrication and installation of specific structural and mechanical
components.

Transportation-related Service Activities: Includes logistics, agency services, cargo handling,
customs procedures, and transportation of goods by sea, rail, road, and air both domestically
and internationally.

Information Technology Services and Other Computer-related Services: Provides IT and
computer-related services, enhancing operational efficiency and supporting other business

areas.

"

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation 21
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06 DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATIONS

UL

MID-AND LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Market Information and Contingency Planning: Continuously updating market information and
developing contingency plans to respond promptly to market fluctuations due to global political
and security situations.

European Market Expansion: Expanding into the European market, improving the product
research and development center to anticipate trade agreements that Vietham has signed and
participated in.

Domestic Fashion Market Development: Enhancing the domestic fashion market, particularly
through e-commerce activities, to achieve a breakthrough in the domestic fashion industry.
Building and perfecting factories to advanced standards, aiming for smart factory and green
production standards in both the Yarn and Fabric sectors, standardizing production and quality
management systems according to regulations.

Promote digitalization and the comprehensive application of information technology in all
activities of the company.

Continuing to invest in rooftop solar energy systems to serve production and improve efficiency,
focusing on environmental protection measures, using renewable energy, and efficiently
utilizing energy and water sources to ensure sustainable development criteria.

Research investment in machinery and equipment towards high automation to save labor,
maximize the potential of automated equipment, avoid waste, and ensure the best efficiency
post-investment.

Focusing on training and developing human resources for the OEM and moving towards actual
ODM capabilities to enhance competitive capacity.

Continually performing well in environmental tasks, fire prevention, security, explosion

prevention, food safety, and occupational safety to ensure the smooth operation of the

company's business activities.

- 2881 -u, < -1“1_
55 [y v |

cansvsl saead e

MAIN OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPANY

»

The operational vision of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Company sets the goal of
ceaseless innovation, construction, and development of core products, while diversifying the
product portfolio to meet the increasingly high demands of customers.

Continuously improving business efficiency remains a top priority, aiming to maximize
profits for the company's shareholders. The focus is on key areas within the textile industry,
continuing to mobilize and use capital efficiently.

The corporation emphasizes market research and exploitation, leveraging every opportunity
to enhance customer service quality and increase competitive capabilities.

There is a strong emphasis on investing in scientific research and information technology
applications, along with modern, automated machinery and equipment to manage production
costs effectively and develop human resources.

Enhancing financial management, maximizing profits, and providing tangible benefits to
shareholders. Strengthening the supervisory roles of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors, and the internal audit team is also a focus.

Pursuing social responsibility goals and environmental protection through green production,
environmental management, and labor management according to international standards.
This contributes to making Hoa Tho one of the leading textile enterprises not only in Southeast

Asia.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation | 23




OBJECTIVES FOR ENVIRONMENT,
COMMUNITY, AND SOCIETY

VISION AND MISSION

As a pioneering and sustainably developing enterprise in the Textile industry,

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation is Hoa Tho aims to be a reliable partner in the global supply chain, utilizing digital

committed to ensuring the interests of shareholders, technology as a foundation for excellent connectivity and operations.

SLOGAN

employees, and customers by maintaining stable
business operations, creating employment @
} opportunities, and providing stable income for workers.

Concentrating on the material and spiritual life of
Harmonizing with the era - Enduring with humanity.

employees, implementing good welfare regimes for
staff, coordinating with unions to promote motivational

movements in production labor, and maintaining BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY

welfare programs for employees.

—
Committing to providing the safest working conditions, +  Theright people are the most valuable asset of the corporation.

allowing employees to feel secure at work and fully + Real value is created for customers.

utilize their capabilities. The goal is to ensure high +  Contributing to the development of the country, the living environment, and
efficiency and increase labor productivity through the meeting the expectations of shareholders.

creation of a healthy, civilized, and advanced work

environment. DEVELOPMENT DIRECTION

Facilitating the activities of political and social

organizations at the company, such as the Party, the Pioneering in business solutions, continuously innovating to partner with leading

Union, and the Youth League. customers and stakeholders in the global textile industry.

Always aiming towards the community and social
welfare, emphasizing humanistic values as a core
cultural value of the company, supporting staff in
‘ difficult situations, and contributing to those in need in

remote and disadvantaged areas.

HTG firmly adheres to and acts according to legal

regulations, particularly in environmental issues,
ensuring that all company production activities comply

with legal standards and norms.

ort

i LR
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ECONOMIC RISKS

In 2023, global economies continued to experience
significant negative impacts due to macroeconomic
instabilities such as sustained high inflation, tightening
monetary policies, the conflict between Russia and
Ukraine, food security, natural disasters, and the
prolonged EI Nino phenomenon. In Vietnam, with a firm
commitment to economic recovery and development,
the macroeconomic environment remained stable with
inflation under control; monetary and fiscal policies
were proactively, flexibly, and effectively managed.
According to the General Statistics Office, Vietnam's
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in 2023 increased
by 5.05% compared to the previous year, which is
higher than the growth rates of 2020 and 2021—years
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Specifically, the
fourth quarter saw a growth of 6.72% compared to the
same period last year, while the first quarter grew by
3.41%, the second by 4.25%, and the third by 5.47%.

26 | Annual Report 2023

According to the General Department of Customs, from
January 1, 2023, to December 15, 2023, the total export
value of Vietnam reached $337.62 billion, a decrease of
5.2% compared to the same period in 2022, equivalent
to a reduction of $18.47 billion. Of this, the textile sector
decreased by $4.29 billion, down 11.9%, ranking it second
among the sectors with the largest declines. The United
States remains the largest market, accounting for over
40% of the Vietnamese textile industry's market share,
followed by Japan, the EU, South Korea, China, and others.
Overall, all these markets recorded a decrease in export
turnover due to diminished demand. Facing a situation
where consumer demand has not shown signs of recovery
due to persistent spending barriers, the business situation
of companies in the Vietnamese textile manufacturing
sector in general, and Hoa Tho in particular, has not yet

been able to return to growth.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In 2023, the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) implemented
several interest rate cuts to stimulate domestic economic
recovery. By the end of 2023, the 12-month deposit rates
of commercial banks were all below 6%, with major banks
setting rates around 5%-5.25%, lower than during the
2020-2021 period (the COVID-19 pandemic). However,
forecasts by many organizations suggest that the Federal
Reserve (FED) is likely to increase rates by an additional
0.25%, raising the target interest rate to 5.5% - 5.75% in
May 2024 to continue controlling inflation before starting
arate-cutting cycle in the latter half of 2024. In this context,
the SBV may change its current stance on loose monetary
policy, potentially leading to increased borrowing costs
for businesses. For a company like Hoa Tho, which has a
relatively high debt-to-capital ratio (over 65%), fluctuations
in interest rates will significantly impact the financial
health of the corporation.

This situation presents a significant challenge for
businesses in general and the corporation in particular. In
response to these difficulties, Hoa Tho always has plans
to save on financial costs and stabilize its production and

business operations.

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The textile industry is regarded as one of the key export
sectors, playing a significant role in the Vietnamese
economy. Hoa Tho operates in this sector, with the
majority of its revenue coming from export activities
(accounting for 90% of total revenue), making the
exchange rate a crucial factor affecting the company's
operations. The company's raw materials are primarily
imported from China and India, while the finished
products are exported to the United States, Europe,
Japan, Canada, and other countries. Thus, fluctuations
in exchange rates can impact both the costs and
revenues of the corporation. The main currencies in
the company's revenue structure include the USD, CNY,
JPY, EUR, etc.

At the end of 2023, the US Dollar Index (DXY) stood at
101.38, marking a decrease of about 2%. Predictions
from global economic institutions indicate that the
Federal Reserve (FED) may have ended its monetary
tightening cycle and could soon move to cut interest
rates, leading to a forecasted depreciation of the USD
in the future. This decline could negatively affect HTG's
export revenue streams, as the American market
accounts for more than 50% of Hoa Tho's export

turnover.

Meanwhile, a Bloomberg survey suggests that the
Chinese Yuan might appreciate for the first time in three
years in 2024. This potential appreciation could continue
to affect Hoa Tho's profitability from the cost side, as the
main raw materials for production are imported primarily
from China.

In the context of a complex international market with
unpredictable fluctuations, the State Bank of Vietnam
(SBV) has made efforts to stabilize the exchange rate
despite strong international market volatility, contributing
to the stabilization of the foreign exchange market,
macroeconomic stability, and inflation control. With the
goal of expanding its export market share, the corporation
always has specific financial policies in place to mitigate

the risks caused by exchange rate fluctuations.
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LEGAL RISKS

The political, legal, and national policy environment
significantly influences the stability and development
capabilities of the overall economy and the textile industry
in particular. Hoa Tho Corporation operates in Vietnam
and is governed by Vietnamese legal regulations such
as the Enterprise Law, Accounting Law, Labor Law, etc.
Additionally, the corporation must adhere to policies,
circulars, and decrees related to customs duties and
import-export activities. Moreover, being listed on the Ho
Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE), the corporation is
also subject to the regulations of the Vietnamese stock
market. With laws and legal policies continuously being
updated to match the economy, Hoa Tho proactively
keeps itself updated and thoroughly researches laws
and policies to both enhance its legal risk prevention

effectiveness in business activities and maintain efficient

operations.

HUMAN RESOURCE RISKS

In Vietnam's market, the textile industry plays a crucial
role and employs a significant labor force. Companies
within the industry continuously compete in terms
of productivity and product quality, making labor
management a significant challenge for Hoa Tho
Corporation. Labor costs constitute a large portion of
the corporation's total expenses, and training a skilled
worker takes about 3-6 months. During this period,
the company incurs training costs and costs due
to product damages caused by unskilled workers.
Hence, personnel turnover represents a risk for the
corporation. Despite facing difficulties related to the
labor force, the corporation has strived to maintain
employment, income for all employees, and maintain
reasonable remuneration, bonuses, and benefits
policies to attract and retain workers, ensuring a

strong labor force to effectively support production.

COMPETITIVE RISKS

The Vietnamese textile industry constantly faces
strong competition in raw materials from countries
that export at lower prices, such as China, India,
Indonesia, and Cambodia. Moreover, over the past
year, Bangladesh has quickly ascended to become
the second-largest textile exporting country in
the world, surpassing Vietnam primarily due to
cost issues, especially in the current challenging
economic climate. Specifically, the minimum wage
in Bangladesh is currently $75 per month, while in
Vietnam and China, it is $199 and $300 per month,
respectively. However, according to an analysis by
GlobalData, a UK-based consultancy and analytics
firm, despite the advantages that Bangladeshi
manufacturers currently have, Vietnam continues
to rank higher in terms of product quality, labor

productivity, and delivery times.

Furthermore, deep engagement in global trade
agreements such as the CPTPP, EVFTA, and RCEP
presents an opportunity for the domestic textile
manufacturing sector to continuously upgrade,
improve, and create opportunities for Vietnamese

textile exports to expand their market share globally.

To capitalize on this opportunity and maintain
competitive  capabilities, textile enterprises
in general, and Hoa Tho in particular, need to
continually improve productivity, implement
advanced techniques and technologies in
production and business, enhance human resource
management, and ensure sustainablemarket
development to minimize production costs and

enhance competitive capacity.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS

The textile industry plays a crucial role

MATERIAL RISKS in meeting human clothing needs and

For Hoa Tho Corporation, ensuring a steady supply of raw generating employment, but it also

materials is crucial, especially for cotton, fibers, and fabrics. carries the downside of significant

However, the domestic supply of these materials does environmental - pollution.  Production

not meet the required quantity and quality, necessitating in_this sector requires substantial

imports from abroad. consumption of water, energy, and

chemicals during the fiber production

For the sewing segment, fabric constitutes the largest process, increasing  the risk of

proportion of materials (80%), mainly imported from environmental pollution.

hi ting f 9% of total i . For th .
China, accounting for 89% of total imports. For the yarn Aware of the importance of

segment, cotton and PE fiber cover a significant portion . .
g 9 P environmental protection, Hoa Tho

of the production costs, which also need to be imported. . . .
Corporation places special emphasis on

Notably, cotton prices are highly volatile and greatly affect using materials and energy efficiently.

the corporation's profitability. . . .
P P y The corporation has invested in solar

energy systems and utilizes renewable

energy sources, minimizing waste in

According to the General Department of Customs, over the course of 2023, Vietnam imported more than 1.3 million tons production. Additionally, to reduce
of cotton, a decrease of 6.8% compared to 2022, totaling over $2.8 billion. This value represents a significant decrease environmental pollution risks, the
of 29.7% compared to 2022. The reason for this sharp decrease in value is due to the drop in cotton prices in 2023, corporation consistently implements
which fell to an average of $2,117 per ton, while the average price in 2022 was $2,807 per ton. Although the input cost environmental responsibility measures
of cotton is trending downward, logistics costs remain high due to impacts from the conflict between Hamas and Israel, such as adopting green manufacturing
rising oil prices due to OPEC's voluntary production cuts, and persistent high inflation in most global economies. practices,complying with environmental

regulations, and proposing solutions

Additionally, importing fabrics mainly from China for wastewater treatment and other

poses challenges for Hoa Tho to benefit from environmental issues.

Free Trade Agreements (FTAs), as current FTAs

like EVFTA or CPTPP require that production OTHER RISKS

materials originate from Vietnam or a member

Beyond the aforementioned risks, Hoa Tho Corporation also faces uncontrollable risks such as epidemics, natural
country of the agreement.

disasters, fires, and explosions. Therefore, the corporation always maintains a policy of monitoring and capturing

) . o timely information to implement effective defense measures, while ensuring smooth operations of the business.
To enhance its competitive capacity in the future,

the corporation is focusing on improving control

) ) The corporation maintains a continuous database of information about the surrounding environmental conditions
over the quality and cost of raw materials to

) o ) and develops flexible response scenarios for any potential emergencies. This approach helps the corporation to make
meet product quality, optimize the supply chain,

L . ) o swift and effective decisions, while best protecting its employees, assets, and overall business operations.
and minimize risks associated with imported

materials.
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01 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LIST OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Full name

1 Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri
2 Mr. Nguyen Van Hai
3 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh
4 Ms. Tran Tuong Anh
5 Mr. Le Quoc An

Position

Chairman of the Board

Board Member and General Director

Board Member and Deputy General Director

Board Member and Deputy General Director

Independent Board Member

Ownership percentage
of shares as of
December 31, 2023

3.12%

0.39%

0.76%
0.66%

0.08%

Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri

Position
Career Timeline

+ March 1990 - April 1994

* May 1994 - March 1997

* April 1997 - May 2001

* May 2001 - July 2001

+ August 2001 - December 2005
+ January 2006 - December 2010
* April 2010

* March 2010 - Present

+ January 2011 - July 2020

+ April 2015 - Present

+ June 2017 - July 31, 2020

+January 1,2019 - December 31,2019
+ January 1, 2020 - Present

+ May 28, 2020 - Present

+ August 1, 2020 - Present

Chairman of the Board

Specialist at Tam Ky General Trading Company, Quang Nam - Da Nang
Deputy Manager of Import-Export Department, Vinatex Danang Branch.
Manager of Import-Export Department, Vinatex Danang Branch
Assistant to the General Director, Hoa Tho Textile Company

Executive Director, Hoa Tho Textile Company

Deputy General Director, Hoa Tho Textile Company, now known as Hoa Tho
Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation.

Chairman of the Board, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Quang
Nam.

General Director, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Secretary of the Party Committee, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Chairman and General Director, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Executive Director, Vietnam Textile Group
Deputy General Director, Vietnam Textile Group
Chairman of the Board, Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company

Chairman of the Board, Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation.




01 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Nguyen Van Hai

Position

Career Timeline

+ 1992 - 2000
2001 - 2005
+ 2006 — February 2007

* March 2007 - April 2009

* May 2009 - 2013

+ 2014 - August 2020
« June 2020 - Present

+ August 2020 - Present

Ms. Tran Tuong Anh

Position

Career Timeline

+ July 1994 — August 2017

January 2011 - June 2014
July 2014 - Present
* May 2014 — April 2022

* April 2015 - Present

+ April 2016 - Present
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Board Member and General Director

Head of the Automatic Embroidery Workshop at Vintex Company, Da Nang

Director of Garment Factory 1 — Hoa Tho Textile Company

Board Member and Director of Hoa Tho Garment Factory 1 — Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Executive Director of the Corporation and Director of Hoa Tho Garment Company
-Dong Ha

Executive Director of the Corporation and Director of Garment Factory 1, Veston
Research and Improvement Department at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Deputy Permanent General Director, Member of the Party Committee Executive
Board of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member and General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Board Member and Deputy General Director

Employee in the Administrative Organization Department, Deputy Head of Labor
Organization, Deputy Head of Administrative Personnel, Chief of Office at Hoa Tho
Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation.

Executive Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors at Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock Company
Member of the Standing Committee of the Party Committee of Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member and Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh

Position
Career Timeline

+ 1999 - 2000
+ 2001 - 2002
+ 2003 - 2004
+ 2005 - 2007
+2008-2011

+2012 - 2013

+2013-2014

+ July 2014 - Present

* June 2017 - Present
* March 2015 - Present

* November 2015 - Present

* June 2022 - Present
+ April 2023 - Present

Mr. Le Quoc An

Position

Career Timeline

+ 1972 -1975
+1975-1998
+ 1998 - 2010

+ 2010 - Present
* June 2017 - Present

Board Member and Deputy General Director

Import-Export Officer at Garment Factory 1 - Hoa Tho Textile Company

Import-Export Officer at the Textile Export-Import Business Department - Hoa Tho
Textile Company

Deputy Head of Textile Export-Import Business Department at Hoa Tho Textile
Company

Deputy Head of Import-Export Yarn Business Department at Hoa Tho Textile
Company

Deputy Director of Hoa Tho Yarn Company at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Head of Yarn Business Department at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Executive Director and Head of Yarn Business Department at Hoa Tho Textile -
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member and Deputy General Director of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoa Tho Thang Binh Yarn Joint Stock
Company

Chairman of the Members' Council of Hoa Tho Mechanical Construction Single
Member Limited Liability Company

Board Member of Viet Thang Corporation - Joint Stock Company

Board Member of Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company

Independent Board Member

Specialist at the National Economic Development Fund

General Director of Viet Thang Textile Company

Chairman of the Board of Members of Vietnam Textile and Garment Group
Retired under the pension scheme

Board Member of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation.
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a BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

LIST OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

-—

Ownership percentage
Full name Position of shares as of .. s . / " .
December 31, 2023 e — 5 ; Loy }

Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh Head of the Board of Supervisors

Member of the Board of Supervisors 0.33%

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son

Member of the Board of Supervisors

3 Mr. Vu Ngoc Tu ) )
(until April 14, 2023)

Member of the Board of Supervisors

4 Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh .
(from April 15, 2023)

Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son

Position Head of the Board of Supervisors . .
Position Member of the Board of Supervisors

Career Timeline o
Career Timeline

+ 2002 - 2007 Accountant at Thai Duong Private Enterprise

+ February 1990 — July 1998 Maintenance Worker 3-4, Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile Plant
+ 2007 - 2007 Accountant at Nhan Luat Steel Investment and Business Joint Stock Company Permanent Member of the Party Committee, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh
+ August 1998 — December 1999 Communist Youth Union, Deputy Director of Garment Factory 1, Hoa Tho Textile
. 2007 - 2013 Accountant in the Finance and Accounting Department of Hoa Tho Textile - Company

Garment Joint Stock Corporation . S .
 January 2000 — February 2002 Director of Garment Factory 2, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh Communist Youth

Deputy Head of the Finance and Accounting Department of Hoa Tho Textile - Union at Hoa Tho Textile Corporation

+2013-2019 . K .
Garment Joint Stock Corporation Deputy of Labor Management, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh Communist Youth
+ March 2002 - December 2002 : ; :
Head of the Internal Board of Supervisors of Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Union at Hoa Tho Textile Corporation
2019 - Present ggiﬁea?ap;;itgg'cﬁ%a:r o;rt:t?oioard of Supervisors of Hoa Tho Textile Permanent Member of the Party Committee, Permanent Member of Emulation
P + January 2003 — April 2007 and Commendation, Secretary of the Ho Chi Minh Communist Youth Union,
Head of the Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company, Committee Member of the Union at Hoa Tho Textile Corporation

+ September 2013 - Present

Duy Xuyen Permanent Member of the Party Committee, Permanent Member of Emulation
+ May 2007 — April 2015 and Commendation, Committee Member of the Union at Hoa Tho Textile Joint
Stock Corporation.
Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee, Permanent Member of Emulation
+ May 2015 — October 2017 and Commendation, Committee Member of the Union at Hoa Tho Textile Joint
Position Member of the Board of Supervisors Stock Corporation
s + June 2017 — Present Member of the Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock Corporation
Career Timeline
. ) ) . . ) Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee, Member of the Board of Supervisors,
+ June 2013 - Present Financial and Accounting Specialist at Vietnam Textile and Garment Group * November 2017 — Present

Chairman of the Union at Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock Corporation

Member of the Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock

« April 2023 - Present Corporation
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03 BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

LIST OF BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh

Position Deputy General Director

Ownership percentage

of shares as of Career Timeline

December 31, 2023

Full name Position

 December 2000 ~ March Import-Export Specialist at Vinatex Danang Branch

1 Mr. Nguyen Van Hai General Director 0.39% 2002
2 Ms. Tran Tuong Anh Deputy General Director 0.66% + April 2002 — April 2004 Officer in the Import-Export Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile Corporation
3 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh Deputy General Director 0.76% - May 2004 — July 2009 Deputy Head of the Import-Export Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile Joint
Stock Corporation
4 Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh Deputy General Director 0.52% ) ) )
Head of the Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock
*+ August 2009 - May 2014 C .
5 Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau Deputy General Director 0.33% orporation
6 Mr. Pham Ngoc Trung Executive Director 0.39% + January 2011 - June 2014 Executive Director, Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock Corporation
7 Mr. Phan Quang Long Executive Director 0.39%
+ July 2014 - Present Deputy General Director, Hoa Tho Textile Joint Stock Corporation
8 Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong Executive Director 0.27%
9 Mr. Nguyen Phuoc Hoang Executive Director 0.15% + August 2020 - Present Board Member, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Duy Xuyen
10 Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Hang Executive Director 0.12%
* April 2023 - Present Board Member, Hanoi Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation
11 Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Trang Executive Director 0.06%
12 Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong Long Chief Accountant 0.15%

Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau
BIOGRAPHY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Biography of Mr. Nguyen Van Hai, Ms. Tran Tuong Anh, Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh: please refer to the biography of the Position Deputy General Director

Board of Directors
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Career Timeline

+ April 2003 — November 2007

« December 2007 - February
2009

+ March 2009 - April 2013

- May 2013 - May 2015

+ June 2015 - July 2020

* August 2020 - April 2022

* May 2022 — Present

* May 2017 — Present

Staff Member, Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Team Leader, Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Manager, Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Manager, Garment Business Department 2, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Executive Director and Manager, Garment Business Department 2, Hoa Tho
Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy General Director and Manager, Garment Business Department 2, Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy General Director and Manager, Garment Business Department 1, Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Hoi An Garment Joint Stock
Company
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03 BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pham Ngoc Trung

Position

Career Timeline
+ 2000 - 2007

+ 2008 - 2009

+2010 - August 2014

» August 2014 - Present

+ August 2015 - August 2020
+ August 2014 — March 2016
+ April 2016 — August 2016

+ September 2016 — Present

Mr. Nguyen Phuoc Hoang

Position

Career Timeline

+ July 1996 — April 1999

+ May 1999 - September 2004

+ October 2004 — February 2013

+ April 2013 - March 2016

+ April 2016 — Present

+ August 2020 - Present:
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Executive Director

In charge of planning at Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Deputy Director of Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Director of Hoa Tho Veston Factory, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Executive Director and Director of Hoa Tho Veston Factory, Hoa Tho Textile and
Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Duy
Xuyen

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Phu
Ninh

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock
Company - Phu Ninh

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Phu
Ninh

Executive Director

Worker at Hoa Tho Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Company
Production Shift Leader at Hoa Tho Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment
Joint Stock Corporation

Labor Supervisor at Hoa Tho Yarn Factory, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Deputy Director of Hoa Tho Yarn Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Director of Hoa Tho Yarn Factory 2, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Executive Director of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Mr. Phan Quang Long

Position

Career Timeline

+ June 1993 - 1995
+ 1995 - 2002
<2002 - 2013
+2013 — May 2014

* June 2014 - Present

+ August 2015 — July 2017

+ January 2016 — Present

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong

Position

Career Timeline

« December 1984 — December
1987

+ January 1988 — December 1997

+ January 1988 — September 2003
+ September 2003 — August 2011

+ August 2011 — December 2019
+ April 2014 - Present

+ January 2020 — Present

+ January 2020 — Present

* November 2020 - Present

* May 2022 - Present

Executive Director

Planning officer for wages at Dien Ban Garment Enterprise
Materials officer at Dien Ban Garment Enterprise

In charge of planning at Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban
Deputy Director of Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban

Director of Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hiep Duc Garment Joint Stock Company

Executive Director of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation,
also serving as Director of Hoa Tho Garment Company - Dien Ban

Executive Director in Charge of Finance

Accountant of MB Dien Quang Cooperative, Dien Ban, Quang Nam
Planning and accounting at Dien Ban Garment Enterprise

Chief Accountant at Quang Nam Garment Company

Specialist, Deputy Head of Finance and Accounting Department, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department at Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint
Stock Corporation

Chief Accountant of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Head of the Board of Supervisors, Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company
Quang Nam

Executive Director of Finance, Person in Charge of Administration at Hoa Tho
Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Board Member of Hoa Tho Yarn Joint Stock Company Thang Binh
Board Member of Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company Duy Xuyen

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock Company

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation | 43



m BOARD OF MANAGEMENT Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Hang

Position Executive Director

Career Timeline

Business staff, Export-Import Garment Business Department, Hoa Tho

* May 2012 - June 2013 Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Team leader, Garment Business Department 1, Hoa Tho Textile and

* June 2013 - August 20174 Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Head of Garment Business Department 1, Hoa Tho Textile and

* August 20174 - December 2017 Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Head of Garment Business Department 5, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment

* January 2018 - April 2023 Joint Stock Corporation

+ April 2023 - Present Executive Director, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong Long

Position Chief Accountant

Career Timeline

+ October 2005 — December 2013 Accountant at Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Deputy Manager of Finance and Accounting at Hoa Tho Textile and

* January 2014 - June 2020 Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Trang + July 2020 - Present glcwjlrii)/r\;?g:ntant at Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock

Head of the Board of Supervisors at Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock

Position Executive Director « June 2017 - Present
Company
Career Timeline

. Member of the Board of Directors at Hoa Tho Hoi An Garment Joint
« April 2022 - Present

- September 2007 Office Specialist, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation Stock Company
- August 2012 Specialist in Charge of Soma! Responsibility — Office of Hoa Tho Textile and
Garment Joint Stock Corporation
« January 2014 Deputy Office Manager, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation
+ August 2017 - Present Office Manager, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Secretary of the Party Cell at the Office, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Executive Director and Office Manager, Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

+ August 2022 - Present

« From April 6, 2023 - Present
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04 HUMAN RESOURCES SITUATION AND POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES

Average income of employees over the years

Year Unit

1 2020 Million VND/person/month
2 2021 Million VND/person/month
3 2022 Million VND/person/month
4 2023 Million VND/person/month

Average Inome

7.40

8.78

9.96

9.66

The company and the trade union work closely together to care for the material and spiritual life of the employees,

creating unity and consensus among the workforce in business operations. Thanks to these caring policies, the

company's labor force remains stable, ensuring the achievement of business production targets for 2023 and beyond.
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As of December 31, 2023, the total workforce is:

No.

Criteria
Classification by gender
Male
Female
Classification by qualification
University, Post-graduate
College, Vocational
Basic and Technical Workers
General Labor Qualification
Classification according to Labor Nature
Direct Labor
Indirect Labor
According to Contract Duration
Short-term contract under 1 year
Fixed-term contract 1 to 3 years
Indefinite term contract
According to Management Level
High-level Management
Mid-level Management
Branch-level Management
Specialists, Employees
According to Age
Ages 18 to 25
Ages 26 to 35
Ages 36 to 45
Over 45

Total

Quantity

2,564

7,569

459
591
301

8,782

6,967

3,166

10

10,123

12
30
38

10,053

1,114
4,226
3,745
1,048

10,133

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Proportion

25.30%

74.70%

4.53%
5.83%
2.97%

86.67%

68.76%

31.24%

0.00%
0.10%

99.90%

0.12%
0.30%
0.38%

99.21%

10.99%
41.71%
36.96%
10.34%

100%

47



04 HUMAN RESOURCES SITUATION AND POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES

, , - Continue to maintain the regime of salary, bonuses, benefits, training,
and promotion for employees. Increase salary by 6 = 10% compared to

PROJECTED SALARY AND BONUS POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES
IN 2024

The Corporation is deeply aware of the importance of human resources for 2023, depending on the business production situation to issue policies
the survival and development of the business. The Corporation has taken to take care of the life of employees better and better.

tunity t t iti ki i 1, ing full
every opportunity to create a positive working environment, ensuring fu WELFARE POLICIES

conditions for employees and focusing on improving the quality of mental life

and working environment. The Corporation regularly captures the sentiments - Organize domestic and international tourism activities for the staff

and aspirations of employees to have reasonable support policies for them. and workers of the Corporation.

The training and recruitment work is maintained with high quality, helping - Organize cultural and sports activities: cooking competitions, folk

to enhance the capacity and quality of the workforce increasingly strong. festival competitions, soccer, etc., to create a positive atmosphere

Therefore, employees can rest assured and firmly attach to the Corporation, and cohesion among staff and workers.

accompanying in the development and success of the Company. * Proactively propose a plan for human resource development to
ensure the search, selection, training, and nurturing of high-quality

“ and capable senior management personnel.

« Participate in 24/24 risk insurance for all employees and health
insurance for key personnel, cancer screening for female workers,
SALARY AND BONUS POLICIES and organize regular health check-ups for employees at Da Nang

General Hospital.
- The process of paying salaries to employees is
«  Fully implement the regulations of the Labor Code, Social
based on the overall business production results
Insurance Law such as: contributing 100% to social insurance,
of the unit and the individual contribution of each
health insurance, and unemployment insurance for employees.
employee. Applying the principle of paying salaries
+  Support tourism, annual vacation for staff and workers, organize
by coefficient, contracted salary, and product-based
training of high-quality human resources.
salary based on business production efficiency,
) ) ) . « Invest, equip facilities to ensure a green, clean, beautiful working
ensuring fairness and encouraging positive
environment. Build and develop corporate culture so that
contributions. Ensuring full and timely payment of
employees feel secure working and attached to the enterprise.
salaries to employees, additional payment of the
+ Support employees in difficult circumstances, bereavement,
13th month salary and Tet bonuses. In addition, the
families with children in daycare, business expenses, support for
Corporation pays additional bonuses during New
commuting.

Year's Day , April 30, May 1, National Day holidays,

seniority bonuses, Tet envelopes, etc. RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING POLICY
- Policies to commend and reward excellent groups

L . . The Corporation recruits new staff according to an established process to ensure that new employees have the
and individuals to motivate employees with good

. . . - necessary qualifications, skills, and experience for the position they are being recruited for, and possess good moral
achievements, creativity, and high productivity. ya P P y g P 9

- Ensuring the livelihood of the staff and workers character, with a desire to commit long-term to the Corporation.

. . . . HTG always considers human resources as the most valuable asset. To survive and develop, high-quality human
in the Corporation to work with peace of mind, y P, high-q y

meeting the basic living standards of employees. resources are a prerequisite and top priority of the Company. With the goal of enhancing the quality of high-quality
human resources, the Company provides opportunities for employees to actively participate in courses to improve

personnel quality such as: Young talent, Director, Aigle, Soft skills, Maintenance, Customs procedures, ...
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P SITUATION OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS CONSOLIDATED NET REVENUE STRUCTURE
Unit: Million VND

SITUATION OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Category

Implementation  Implementation  Implementation

i Value (million VND) Proportion (%) Value (million VND) Proportion (%)
lidiegioy 2022 2023 2023/2022
Textile Indust 3,972,083 76.70% 3,772,753 80.27%
1 Net revenue Million VND 5,178,538 4700210 90.76% I ITEE
2  Costof Sales Million VND 4,564,510 4,268,076 93.51% Yarn Industry 1,206,455 23.30% 927,457 19.73%
3 Financial Income Million VND 97,315 84,155 86.48% Total 5,178,538 100% 4,700,210 100%
Fi ial, Selli d
4 ''nancial Sefing, an Million VND 360,686 311,846 86.46%
Administrative Expenses
GROSS PROFIT STRUCTURE . -
Profit f busi Unit: Million VND
5 - ontITOmMBbUSINess Million VND 352,160 206,842 58.74%
activities
6 Other profits Million VND 5,093 3,969 77.93% Category
. on (% . on (%
2 Profit before tax Million VND 357252 210811 50.01% Value (million VND)  Proportion (%)  Value (million VND)  Proportion (%)
8 Profit after tax Million VND 284,986 169,873 59.61% Textile Industry 498,203 81.14% 417.750 26.67%
Yarn Industry 115,824 18.86% 14,384 3.33%
Total 614,027 100% 432,134 100%

In 2023, the global economy faced numerous difficulties and

challenges, with most countries recording lower economic growth

than expected, primarily due to a decrease in overall demand. PrOﬁt before tax
The textile industry was no exception, being affected by the )

— 210,811
global economic situation. With revenue primarily from sales and million VND
processing of textile goods (accounting for over 99%), and 90%

of output products exported, the company faced an unfavorable

business environment over the past year.

Specifically, net revenue fell by 9.24% compared to 2022, while

the cost of sales only decreased by 6.49%. The reason is due to

the increase in the cost of fabric inputs from China and energy Net revenue
prices for production activities. As a result, gross profit recorded a —

decrease of 29.62% compared to last year. Financial income also — 4,700,210
saw a decrease of 13.52% compared to the same period, thereby @ million VND

failing to improve the company's profit, with net profit from

business activities significantly dropping by 41.26% compared to

last year, amounting to 206,842 million VND.
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01 SITUATION OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

EXPORT SITUATION

Category

Exports

Textile Industry
Yarn Industry
Domestic
Textile Industry
Yarn Industry

Total

\ Domestic
\ Exports

54 | Annual Report

Value (million VND)
4,783,420
3,776,102
1,007,318

395,118
195,982
199,136

5,178,538

7.63%

\Q\\““’I//////

//
1\

W/

U

2023

Proportion (%)

92.37%

78.94%

21.06%

7.63%

49.60%

50.40%

100%

2022 === — 9237%

Value (million VND)

Unit: Million VND

Proportion (%)

4,473,679 95.18%
3,631,055 81.16%
842,624 18.84%
226,531 4.82%
141,698 62.55%
84,833 37.45%
4,700,210 100%
4.82%

= 95.18%

N
o
N
w

R

U

In 2023, the world saw a slow recovery of economies
as geopolitical tensions continued to fragment
trade and inflation remained high in key apparel
export markets such as the USA and Europe,
leading to a significant decline in purchasing power.
This had a negative impact on the overall business
operations of the Corporation, affecting both export
and domestic markets.

Export revenue continued to play a dominant role
in the Corporation's revenue structure, with its
proportion increasing from 92.37% to 95.18%.
Meanwhile, the proportion of domestic revenue
decreased from 7.63% to 4.82%. Although the
Corporation aimed to increase revenue from
the domestic market, this goal still faced many
challenges.

Revenue for both the textile and yarn segments of
the Corporation decreased compared to the same

period last year.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

According to information from the Vietnam Textile
and Apparel Association (VITAS), textile and
garment export turnover in 2023 reached about 40.3
billion USD, a decrease of 9.2% compared to 2022.
Specifically, garment exports decreased by 3.1
billion USD (down 8.9%). However, the Corporation's
garment export revenue only decreased by 3.84%.
With revenue mainly coming from the garment
segment, the Corporation experienced a lower rate
of decline in garment export revenue than the overall
economic downturn, showing that the Corporation's
business operations were still very stable in a
generally difficult environment.

The gross profit structure of the Corporation also
saw significant changes. In 2023, while the garment
segment accounted for 80.27% of net revenue, it
represented 96.67% of the gross profit structure. This
was due to a significant drop in yarn prices following
a supply shortage period, while a large inventory of
high-cost cotton raw materials affected the profit

margin of the Corporation's yarn segment.
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In 2023, the Corporation focused on investing in additional deep-dive equipment for the textile and yarn units, deploying

n INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES, PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

renovation and repairs of infrastructure to meet the production and business needs of the units. The total investment
for 2023 reached 102 billion VND, with a disbursement value of 94 billion VND.

Contract 2023 2023
T Performance Disbursement Notes
Time (billion Value (billion  Value (billion

(billion VND) VND) VND) VND)

Total

Completion Value

Investment Project Name

\
|

Pl Wbl b ¢
el
W

I
BEIII
Al s gl

P
I,

4

Ll g
fg

WIS
L A

Deep Investment in the
Textile Industry 2023

Phase 1 April 2023 9.69 9.69 9.47 9.47
Phase 2 June 2023 8.72 8.72 8.28 8.28
Phase 3 Dis sy 40 40 35.38 25.89
2023 ’ ’
Investment in Used Auqust
Automatic Fabric 9 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4
. . 2023

Spreading Equipment
Investment Project to

2 Improve Harmonic Waves 2024 5.5 5.5 6.315 1.65
at the Corporation
Deep Investment Project 2023 -

3 to Supplement Equipment 2024 18 2.7 2.7 0
for the Yarn Industry
Investment in

Al Constrctioniofinicl 2022-2024 96 3.2 3.2 0.35
Phong Garment Factory —
Phase 3
Investment in Solar

5 Power System on 2023 -2024 40 0.4 0.4 0
Corporate Roofs
Investment in Total
Renovation and

6  Additional Equipment 2023 -2024 57 0.14 0.14 0
at Quang Ngai Garment
Factory
Carryover Projects from
2022
Deep Investment in the

1 Textile Industry Phase 4 Q1/2023 9.57 9.57 9.14 9.14
- 2022
Textile Industry Deep

2 Investment - Phase 2 2022 5.79
2022
Textile Industry Deep

3 Investment - Phase 3 2022 9.36
2022

4 TP Project - Phase 2 2022 1.11

5 Yarn Industry Deep 2022 133

Investment - 2020

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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03 FINANCIAL SITUATION

FINANCIAL SITUATION

Indicator

Solvency Ratio

% Increase/

Indicator 2023/2022 % Current Ratio
Decrease
1 Total Asset Million VND 2.413,126 2,507,721 103.92% 3.92% Quick Ratio
2 Net Revenue Million VND 5,178,538 4,700,210 90.76% -9.24% Capital structure Ratio
Profit from Business . Debt/Total assets Ratio 62.64% 66.63%
3 o Million VND 352,160 206,842 58.74% -41.26%
Activities
Debt/Ower’s Equity Ratio 167.70% 199.68%
4 Other Profits Million VND 5,093 3,969 77.93% -22.07%
Operation capability Ratio
5 Profit Before Tax Million VND 357,252 210,811 59.01% -40.99% e TUTEyes
6 Profit After Tax Million VND 284,986 169,873 59.61% -40.39% Total Asset Turnover
7 EPS Dong 7,146 4,444 62.19% 37.81% ol Retio

Profit After Tax/Net Revenue Ratio

Profit After Tax/Average Equity Ratio

Profit After Tax/Total Assets Ratio
Profit from Business Activities/Net Revenue Ratio

2022 2023
. Total Asset . Other Profits
. Net Revenue . Profit Before Tax
Profit from Business Activities . Profit After Tax
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03 FINANCIAL SITUATION

SOLVENCY RATIO

The Corporation's current ratio decreased from 1.31 to 1.22 times. The primary reason is the faster increase in
short-term debt compared to the rise in short-term assets. Specifically, short-term borrowing increased by 21.11%
from the previous year, equivalent to 112 billion VND. Last year, the Corporation took loans from Vietnam Joint
Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade totaling 600 billion VND, with a maximum term of 12 months. The
purpose of this borrowing was to support legitimate credit needs for the Corporation's production and business
activities. Meanwhile, short-term assets increased by 142 billion VND, mainly due to a rise in cash equivalents up
to 190 billion VND.

The quick ratio increased from 0.57 to 0.69 times, as the Corporation reduced its inventory value by more than
178 billion VND, a decrease of 18.71%. The challenging business environment led the company to actively reduce
inventory, thus improving the quick ratio and indicating that the Corporation's finances are healthy and capable of

meeting its short-term obligations.

1.31
1.22

@ Current Ratio

0.69
0.5/ Quick Ratio

2022 2023

OPERATIONAL CAPACITY RATIO

During the year, the inventory turnover decreased from 5.16 to 5.09 turns, which is due to a 6.49% decrease in the
cost of sales while average inventory only decreased by 5.15% compared to the previous year. The decrease in
net revenue led to a corresponding decrease in the cost of sales, albeit at a lower rate than the decline in revenue.
The total asset turnover decreased from 2.18 to 1.91 turns, due to a 9.24% decrease in net revenue for 2023,
while the average total assets slightly increased by 3.51%.

Overall, the impact of the global decline in purchasing power and the unfavorable export conditions has

significantly affected the operational capacity of the Corporation.

5.16 509
[ ] Inventory Turnover

2.18 1.91 Total Asset Turnover

2022 2023
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIO

The financial indicators related to capital structure allincreased compared to the same period last year. Specifically,
the Debt to Total Assets ratio increased from 62.64% to 66.63%, and the Debt to Equity ratio increased from
167.70% to 199.68%. The rise in these ratios is due to a 10.53% increase in liabilities, while total assets only
increased by 3.92% and equity decreased by 7.17%. The increase in liabilities was mainly due to additional short-
term borrowing during the year to support production and business activities.

The Debt to Total Assets ratio of the Corporation over the past two years has been at a reasonable level, around
0.6, indicating that the Corporation is fully capable of managing its current debt obligations while effectively
leveraging financial resources. The Debt to Equity ratio over the past two years has been greater than 1 but less
than 2. As a manufacturing enterprise, the Corporation is effectively utilizing borrowed capital to generate profits

and convert these profits into equity.

199.68%
167.70%
@ Debt/Total assets Ratio
62.64% 66.63%
. . Debt/Ower’s Equity Ratio
2022 2023

PROFITABILITY RATIO

Overall, the profitability ratios of the Corporation decreased compared to last year due to difficult business
conditions. The negative impact caused significant decreases in profitability indicators. Profit after tax and profit
from business activities decreased by 40.39% and 41.26%, respectively, much higher than the decline in net

revenue (-9.24%), the decrease in equity (-7.17%), or the increase in average total assets (3.51%).

36.65%

11.99%
19.55%

6.80% 9
5.50% 6.90%

@ Profit After Tax/Net Revenue Ratio

4.40%

3.61% .

2022 2023

B Profit After Tax/Total Assets Ratio

Profit After Tax/Average Equity Ratio B Profit from Business Activities/Net Revenue Ratio
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04 SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE, CHANGE IN THE OWNER’S EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE

Ownership Shareholder Structure
Shares (as of December 31, 2023)

Number of
Shareholders

Category Number of Shares Percentage /
Capital (%) Institutional  Individual

Charter Capital: VND 360,027,080,000
Total Issued Shares: 36,002,708 shares

Par Value: VND 10,000 1 Major shareholders 22,274,205 61.87% 1 1 0
Number of shares: 36,002,708 shares 2 Company union 424,629 1.18% 2 2 0
Treasury Shares: 0 shares Other shareholders 13,303,874 36.95% 2,814 6 2.808
Number of floating shares: 36,002,708 shares 3 |- Domestic 13,294,507 36.92% 2807 4 2803
- Foreign 9,367 0.03% 7 2 5

TOTAL 36,002,708 100% 2,817 9 2,808

In there:- Domestic 35,993,341 99.97% 2,810 7 2,803

- Foreign 9,367 0.03% 7 2 5

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS (AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023)

Number of Shares Ownership Percentage

/ Capital (%)

Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group 22,274,205 61.87%

CHANGE IN THE OWNER’'S
EQUITY: In 2023, Hoa Tho
increased the owner's equity from
VND 300,030,750,000 to VND
360,027,080,000.

TRANSACTION OF TREASURY
STOCKS: In 2023, the company
didn't conduct any treasury stock
transactions.

OTHER SECURITIES: None
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01 ASSESSMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS

Implementation

Implementation Implementation

Indicator 2022 2023 2023/2022
1 Net revenue Million VND 5,178,538 4,700,210 90.76%
2 Cost of Sales Million VND 4,564,510 4,268,076 93.51%
3 Financial Income Million VND 97,315 84,155 86.48%
Financial, Selling, and o
4 o ) Million VND 360,686 311,846 86.46%
Administrative Expenses
5 Profit from business activities Million VND 352,160 206,842 58.74%
6 Other profits Million VND 5,093 3,969 77.93%
7 Profit before tax Million VND 357,252 210,811 59.01%
8 Profit after tax Million VND 284,986 169,873 59.61%

KEY FINANCIAL METRICS

> » Net Revenue reached 4,700 billion VND, which is 90.76% compared to 2022 and achieved 105% of the 2023 plan.

2P

2P

2P
2P
%
2P
2P

In there:

- Export Revenue from Textile Sector: 3,657 billion VND, equal to 95% compared to 2022.

- Fashion Revenue: 88 billion VND, up 6% compared to 2022.

- Revenue from Yarn Sector: 927 billion VND, equal to 77% compared to 2022.

- Other Revenue: 28 billion VND.
Export Turnover: Achieved 262 million USD, which is 95% compared to 2022 and reached 116% of the 2023 plan.
In there:

- United States: 45%

- Europe: 15%

- Asia: 30% (including Japan at 21%)

- Other markets: 10%
Main Products:

- Various Types of Yarn: 16,430 tons.

- Garments: 27 million products.
Average income: Reached 9.66 million VND per person per month, equal to 97% compared to 2022.
Separate Profit: Reached 220 billion VND, equal to 64% compared to 2022 and achieved 115% of the 2023 plan.
Consolidated Profit: Reached 211 billion VND, equal to 59% compared to 2022 and achieved 106% of the 2023 plan.
Depreciation for 2023: Reached 123 billion VND, equal to 97% compared to 2022.
Tax Contribution to the Consolidated Budget: Reached 170 billion VND, equal to 98% compared to 2022.

66 | Annual Report 2023

In 2023, the global economy faced numerous difficulties
and challenges, with most economies around the world
experiencing lower-than-expected growth rates. Under the
general impact of the global economic situation, the textile
industry also went through a challenging year in 2023.
According to the General Department of Customs, from
January 1, 2023, to December 15, 2023, the total value of
textile and garment exports decreased by 11.9%, ranking it
second among the industry groups with the most significant
declines. The only bright spot was the export of yarn, which
maintained a growth in volume despite the falling export
prices due to global inflation, showing positive signs for the

Vietnamese textile industry.

Despite the extremely challenging market conditions
affecting the production and business efficiency of the
Corporation compared to the same period in 2022, the
determined leadership of the Vietham Textile and Garment
Group and the Corporation's Board of Directors, along with
the commitment of the Leadership, the proactive flexibility
and creativity of the units, and the solidarity and support of
the entire workforce, enabled the Corporation to achieve the

production and business targets set for 2023.
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02 FINANCIAL SITUATION

ASSETS

Implementation 2023/

Indicator
Inplementation 2022

Short-term Assets 1,619,067 1,761,376 108.79%
Long-term Assets 794,059 746,345 93.99%
Total Assets 2,413,126 2,507,721 103.92%

Unit: Million VND

Proportion Proportion
2022 2023
67.09% 70.24%
32.91% 29.76%
100% 100%

In 2023, the total assets of the Corporation increased by 3.92% compared to the previous year. Specifically,

short-term assets increased by 8.79%, reaching 1,761,376 million VND. Notably, cash and cash equivalents

rose dramatically by 761.13% compared to 2022, with cash equivalents alone surging by 2717.46% to 197,222

million VND. Accounts receivable from customers also saw a rise of 7.03% as the Corporation extended the

payment period for its customers amid challenging business conditions. Long-term assets saw a slight decline

of 6% from the previous year, primarily due to an increase of 7.12% in the depreciation of tangible fixed assets.

Regarding the asset structure in 2023, short-term assets increased from 67.09% to 70.24% of total assets,

equivalent to an increase of 142,309 million VND. A major contributor to the short-term assets was inventory,

which accounted for 43.49% of short-term assets..

\ Long-term Assets
\ Short-term Assets

32.91% 29.77%

\\i\\\\\l’ll/////
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S ASSETS é — 67.09% g ASSETS é
% 2022 % -’; 2023 §
U e

U

68 | Annual Report 2023

\\\i\\‘“"ll/////

ZIN

== 70.23%

DEBT PAYABLE

Unit: Million VND

Indicator Implementation 2023/ Proportion Proportion
Inplementation 2022 2022 2023
Short-term Debt 1,238,127 1,441,465 116.42% 81.90% 86.27%
Long-term Debt 273,561 229,450 83.88% 18.10% 13.73%
Total Debt 1,511,688 1,670,915 110.53% 100% 100%

In 2023, the total debt of the Corporation increased by 10.53% compared to 2022, reaching 1,670,915 million VND.
Within this, short-term debt continued to dominate the debt structure of the Corporation, accounting for 86.27%,
or 1,441,465 million VND, an increase of 16.42% from the previous year. The rise in short-term debt primarily
stemmed from three main categories: short-term borrowings, other payables, and payables to employees.
Specifically, short-term borrowings increased by 112,003 million VND to 642,689 million VND, up 21.11% from last
year, to finance the legitimate, reasonable, and valid credit needs serving the production and business activities
of the Corporation. The other payables and payables to employees rose by 374.29% to 115,412 million VND and
by 8.57% to 338,575 million VND, respectively.

Long-term debt of the Corporation decreased compared to the previous year, dropping from 273,561 million
VND to 229,450 million VND. The primary reason for this decrease was the reduction in long-term borrowings by
42,194 million VND, bringing the proportion of long-term debt down to 13.73% of the total debt.

The shift towards a higher proportion of short-term debt and a reduced ratio of long-term debt in the debt structure
in 2023 indicates flexibility in the capital structure of the Corporation. This adjustment suggests that the burden
of interest expenses for the Corporation has been reduced. Generally, the debt structure in the textile industry

companies often shows a very large proportion of short-term liabilities.

\ Long-term Debt
\ Short-term Debt

‘10< 13.73\%
%PQBAZBZLE\\\§ 81.90% % PAYABLE % ~— 86.27%

TN U

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation



IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICIES,

AND MANAGEMENT PRODUCTION OPERATIONS _

03

{ +  Constructand completefactoriesthatmeetactual \

( —  MANAGEMENTPRACTICE — — — — — — — — — — — — \ | standards, ensuring smart factory standards |

for both the yarn and textile industries. Focus

| Continuously refined the business strategy aligned with the digital transformation of the | | on effectively and thoroughly implementing

Corporation for the 2021-2030 period to steer development in line with contemporary trends. | | the standardization of production systems and |

Adhered strictly to legal regulations, corporate statutes, and internal procedures throughout | quality management systems according to the |

] operations, diligently implementing decisions and resolutions from the Shareholders’ General | | established procedures and maintaining them |

Meeting and the Board of Directors. | to stabilize quality, increase productivity, and

minimize risks.
Strictly adhere to the production and quality |
‘ management processes issued by the |

T - T Corporation. Continuously improve customer

service quality, proactively enhance productivity

« The Corporation is strategically restructuring its products and customer
I P gicaty g P | | at factories, and improve the credibility of the Hoa I
base across both the yarn and textile industries. This includes further ) ) )
| | | Tho brand, serving as a basis for the business |

expansion into the European market, capitalizing on the advantages .
department to exploit orders and markets. |

| offered by trade agreements such as the European Union-Vietnam Free | I . .
Consolidate a modern production system

| Trade Agreement (EVFTA), the Korea-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement | | ) .
and technical personnel capable of managing

(KVFTA), the Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans- ) ) )
| production effectively to make production most |

Pacific Partnership (CPTPP), and the Regional Comprehensive Economic . L ) .
\ efficient, competitively priced, and create quality ’
| Partnership (RCEP) that Vietnam has signed and joined. | .
products that satisfy customers..

| +  Textile Industry: Development and expansion into new markets through | NG

—_— — — — — — — — — —

market research, customer needs assessment, and proposal of
appropriate products. Establish policies to ensure customer benefits,
| aiming to maintain solid relationships. Tightly integrate business activities | — DEVELOPMENT AND IT APPLICATION — — — —
| with production tasks to clearly understand market demands and adjust | ( )

manufacturing accordingly. . . . . . .
g gy | Deeply integrate information technology into the operations of the Corporation to |

Yarn Industry: Adjust production flexibly to quickly respond to market | ensure readiness for digitaGefSTorMad. |

| fluctuations and customer demands, seize market opportunities through | . . . .
Invest in solar energy systems to support production and contribute to environmentally

| investment in market research and demand forecasting, and implement | | friendly practices

efficient production and sales. . Gl . .
| P | | +  Strengthen the investment in highly automated machinery and equipment to save on |

Regularly update market conditions and build contingency plans to timel . . . .
9 yup gency p y | labor costs, fully utilize the capacity of automated equipment, avoid waste, and ensure |

| respond to continuous market changes. | .

| «  Enhance the Research and Development Center of the Corporation | | the besteffectiveness, |
to improve the effectiveness of market activities, anticipating trade \ )
agreements that Vietnam has signed and participated in.
| +  Focus on vigorously developing the domestic fashion market, enhance |
| e-commerce activities to expand and achieve breakthrough developments |

for the Corporation’s domestic fashion industry.

—_—  — — — — — — — — — @ — @ — @ — @ — @ — @ —
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03

IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE, POLICIES,
AND MANAGEMENT

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Promptly issue various policies, procedures, and regulations to effectively manage human
resources at the Corporation. Maintain good training and management practices, having
collaborated with training centers to organize numerous courses to enhance the skills of the
workforce.

Always care for the material and spiritual lives of employees, fostering solidarity and unity
among workers in business and production, and maintaining a strong system of social and
environmental responsibility in line with new requirements and situations.

Effectively conduct communication efforts to build and preserve the image, credibility, and
brand of the Corporation. Communication must be clear and consistent, reaching every

employee so that they understand, share, and commit to the Corporation.

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

Ensure funding for the production, business activities, and
investment projects of the Corporation. The management
accounting work is updated and reported regularly every month,
with timely analysis of costs and production business efficiency.
Further perfect the financial and accounting operations of the
Corporation, enhance cash flow management, and effectively
balance finances to properly manage the Corporation's financial
indicators, ensuring a safe financial source to overcome the
unpredictable developments of both global and domestic
situations, ensuring sustainable development.

Continue to leverage the effective use of long-term and short-
term borrowed capital, ensuring cash flow balance to support
the production and business activities and guarantee support

for the employees.

72 | Annual Report 2023

OTHER OPERATIONS

Intensify risk management efforts and strengthen internal control activities to prevent and
limit risks in production and business operations.

Continuously build the Hoa Tho brand to greater heights, maintain and further enhance the
corporate culture of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Joint Stock Corporation, considering it as
the core in the development process of the Corporation.

Maintain the political security and safety order of the Corporation, ensuring fire prevention and
firefighting activities are always secured, with no occurrences of fire or explosion. Regularly
conduct inspections of fire prevention and firefighting activities at member units to promptly
detect and address any potential risks.

Continue to focus on environmental work, flood and storm prevention, and food safety for the

Corporation.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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04 DEVELOPMENT PLANS IN FUTURE

Indicator Plan 2024 % Plan /2023
1 Total Revenue Million VND 4,500,000 95.66%
2 Export Turnover Million USD 247 94.27%
3 Profit Before Tax Million VND 220,000 104.27%
4 Average Income Increase 6% - 10% compared to 2023

05 BASED ON THE COMPLETION OF THE PLAN

+  Continue to implement the Corporation's business strategy for the 2021 - 2030 period in line with the digital
transformation strategy to meet the development of the era and adapt to new changes.

+  Shift and focus investment resources on the domestic market through the development of the Merriman brand and
Hoa Tho fashion.

«  Continue to search for potential customers, expand markets, and maintain long-term cooperative relationships with
clients.

+  Properly exercise the powers of the Board of Directors as stipulated in the Corporation's Charter and the Business
Law. Enhance the management activities of the Board of Directors, strengthen the connection between the Board
and shareholders, and between the Board and the Board of Management.

+ Intensify efforts to improve technology and engineering, focusing on automated, advanced, and modern machinery
and equipment; manage quality and concentrate on training human resources to boost labor productivity.

+ Restructure the Corporation's operational model towards a more modern, efficient, and suitable direction for its
development.

+ Actively manage cash flow, minimize financial risks, and develop financial strategies and solutions for business
operations and employee support.

+  Focus on innovation and invention to improve technology and save costs on energy, water, and replacement parts.

+  Create conditions and provide the best policies to care for the lives of employees and protect the environment

through various measures.

LWLV

ALV VTV TV LY
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01 ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE TEXTILE INDUSTRY

e

In 2023, the global textile industry experienced
significant challenges due to a decline in
global demand. Over the first 11 months, the
export value of textiles and garments stood at
$30.43 billion, a decrease of 12.3% (equivalent
to a reduction of $4.25 billion) compared to
the same period the previous year. Notably,
exports decreased to three major markets: the
United States, the European Union (EU-27), and
South Korea, while there was a slight increase
in exports to Japan. Specifically, exports to the
USA were $13.17 billion, down by 18.2%; to the
EU-27 were $3.54 billion, down by 13.8%; and to
South Korea were $2.82 billion, down by 7.6%.
Conversely, exports to Japan slightly increased
to $3.71 billion, a growth of 0.3%.

Looking ahead to 2024, the difficulties facing
the Vietnamese textile industry may continue
due to adverse factors such as a potential global
economic recession, widespread geopolitical
crises, changing consumer behaviors, and price

competition from rival countries.

— BN

. -

- aw

78 | Annual Report 2023

Given this context, it is imperative that textile
companies, including Hoa Tho, proceed with
caution when planning their business and
production strategies for 2024. They should
explore opportunities in the American market,
enhance productivity, and develop new product
lines.

Furthermore, there is a need to leverage and
capitalize on the support offered by Free Trade
Agreements (FTAs) such as the EU-Vietnam
Free Trade Agreement (EVFTA), the Regional
Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP),
and the UK-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement
(UKVFTA). These agreements provide

significant opportunities for growth and

market expansion.

02

ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

In 2023, a decline in consumer demand for apparel, coupled with stagnant demand

and prices in the yarn sector, resulted in lower revenue for the company compared
to the previous year. Faced with these challenges, the Board of Management of Hoa
Tho Textile and Garment Corporation diligently followed the directives of the Board
of Directors and the Vietnam Textile and Garment Group. They were committed to
balancing costs to ensure production continuity, job security, and the well-being of
the workforce.

Proactively, the company implemented a series of measures to swiftly adapt to
the new situation and stabilize its business operations. Consequently, the key
performance indicators in the company's business activities were maintained at
satisfactory levels, reflecting the effective management and operational strategies

undertaken during a challenging year.
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03

REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2023
AND ACTION PLAN FOR 2024

ACTIVITIES OF THE INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBER IN 2023

In 2023, the independent board member participated in 100% of the board meetings and made significant contributions

to the company's governance. Additionally, the independent member also provided consultative and critical opinions

before voting on matters within the board's authority, with a strong commitment to the rule of law.

The independent board member, deeply knowledgeable about the textile industry, greatly facilitated the contribution of

opinions to the Board during the implementation of objectives and tasks assigned by the General Shareholders' Meeting.

The independent board member carried out the rights and responsibilities assigned in accordance with relevant legal

regulations, the Corporation's charter, and resolutions from the General Shareholders' Meeting. Throughout 2023, the

independent board member successfully completed the following tasks:
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» Executed duties honestly and diligently to maximize the company’s legal
interests.

» Remained loyal to the company and its shareholders; did not misuse
company information or opportunities for personal gain or the benefit of
others.

» Gave a comprehensive perspective, covered the entire interests of the
stakeholders, gave opinions, made decisions to enhance the effectiveness
and feasibility of the decisions of the Board of Directors, improved the
efficiency of the Company's business operations, and guaranteed the rights
and interests of the company and its shareholders.

» Other obligations under the law and the Corporation's charter The
independent board member performed management functions through
participation in the Board's discussion and decision-making process, while

ensuring that such decisions were made fairly and reasonably.

ASSESSMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBER OF THE BOARD'S ACTIVITIES

The Board members are highly skilled professionals with extensive experience and reputable relations in the textile
industry. They exhibit a continuous learning attitude and are open to feedback, which benefits the overall objectives
of the corporation.

In 2023, the Board of Directors fulfilled its roles and responsibilities as defined by the Corporate Law, the Corporation's
charter, operating regulations of the Board of Directors and internal governance regulations. Each member diligently
completed their assigned tasks. The Board closely monitored the Board of Management to ensure compliance with
the resolutions of the 2023 General Shareholders' Meeting and the Board's resolutions, providing timely guidance
and support to the management in implementing the company's business objectives.

The Board held regular and extraordinary meetings, solicited written opinions from Board members to approve
actions within their authority, addressed emergent issues, and resolved difficulties. The Board also led quarterly and
annual review meetings to direct and strategize the Corporation’s business activities and management. Furthermore,
they coordinated effectively with the Board of Supervisors to oversee the Board of Management's handling of the

Corporation’s operations, finances, and investments.
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04 BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ORIENTATION FOR 2024

- The Board of Directors will regularly organize meetings to review reports and proposals from the Board of Management

and the Board of Supervisors, discuss and approve reports, projects, plans, and policies related to the Corporation's

business operations.

- Extraordinary meetings will be convened to address emergent matters within the authority of the Board as stipulated

in the Corporation's charter.

- The Board will develop directions and assign strategic tasks for the Corporation, deciding on projects and other matters

within its jurisdiction as part of the business execution plan.

MARKET OUTLOOK

According to the Vietnam Textile and Apparel
Association, despite a decline in 2023 with textile
exports valued at $30.43 billion, down 12.3% from
the previous year, the industry saw breakthroughs
in market and product diversification, exporting 36
types of goods to 104 territories. Notably, exports
to the U.S., EU (27 countries), and South Korea
declined, while exports to Japan slightly increased.
For 2024, despite ongoing global economic
recession and geopolitical crises potentially
prolonging difficulties for Vietnam's textile sector,
there is an optimistic projection for a gradual
recovery. The industry aims for an export revenue
of $44 billion in 2024, up 9.2% from 2023.

Vietnam is actively participating and negotiating
19 free trade agreements (FTAs), with 16 already
signed and implemented and three under
negotiation, making it unique in having FTAs with
all major global economic partners including the
U.S., Japan, China, the EU, the UK, and Russia.

The newly approved development strategy for
Vietnam's textile and footwear industries up to
2030, with a vision to 2035, is set to attract foreign
investment into the yarn-textile-dyeing sector
and leverage advantages from the FTAs to foster

sustainable growth.
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Economic forecasts for 2024 are optimistic about
global economic improvement, particularly in the U.S.
market which might experience up to three rate cuts
amounting to 0.75%, potentially boosting consumer
spending.

While competing countries face labor issues and armed
conflicts, Vietnam is becoming a safe destination,

potentially redirecting orders back to the country.

Domestically, the macroeconomic environment is
expected to remain stable with a GDP growth projection
higher than in 2023. However, the textile industry faces
new challenges such as a 6% increase in the minimum
wage from July 1, 2024, and potential continued

increases in electricity prices after a 7% rise in 2023.
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Sustainable development is defined as
development that meets the needs of the present
without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs. Thus, HTG is
fully aware that the Corporation can only achieve
sustainable development by harmoniously
combining economic growth objectives with
the execution of social responsibilities and
environmental protection to ensure, enhance,
and balance the interests of all stakeholders:
shareholders  and investors,  customers,
business partners, state management agencies,

employees, and the community.

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Corporation (HTG) recognizes the critical importance

of aligning sustainable growth with economic growth through its core business

activities. Therefore, HTG operates with the objective of maximizing profits in its

production and business operations to foster the development of the corporation as

well as to drive economic growth. Here are some specific strategies HTG implements

»

»

»

»

»

»

Commit to the timely and complete disclosure of information
regarding its operations, enhancing transparency to build trust among
shareholders and the community.

HTG is committed to ensuring employment for its workforce while
creating conducive conditions for the economic development of the
production sector.

Prioritizing the interests of shareholders, HTG ensures the annual
dividend payments to deliver optimal profits and maintain shareholder
satisfaction.

Continually improve Corporation's production capabilities and enhances
product quality. The Corporation also focuses on customer service to
expand its market share and attract potential customers.

Continue to strengthen and improve the quality of management at all
levels, from executive management to operational teams, ensuring
readiness for sustainable economic growth objectives.

The Leadership and all employees strive together to fulfill the tasks
and plans set for the year, aiming to advance the development of the

corporation and promote economic growth.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

HTG understands that the business is a small part of the economy and an active entity in society;

therefore, its environmental responsibility extends beyond mere ethical duties or image concerns to
real and intrinsic responsibilities. Thus, environmental responsibility is seen as the Corporation's duty

to itself.

» HTG commits to fully complying with all environmental protection
laws, continuously implementing requirements for planning,
preventative measures, and responses to environmental incidents as
per legal regulations.

»  Regular inspections and the application of improved manufacturing
processes are carried out to ensure full compliance with environmental
standards for a cleaner and more beautiful environment.

»  TheCorporationimplements solutions to prevent and treat wastewater
and addresses any environmental incidents. The Corporation
manages the collection, transportation, and disposal of hazardous
waste responsibly to protect the environment and public health.

»  Efficient use of resources, such as water and energy, is prioritized.

» The Corporation guides and educates its employees and advises
customers on the use of environmentally friendly and energy-saving
products to enhance community awareness of environmental

protection.

EIQBI CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITY

HTG always aims for mutually beneficial outcomes and

customer satisfaction.

»  Continuously improve service quality, always taking
time to listen and acknowledge customer feedback to
better meet their expectations and needs.

» Consolidate technical capabilities and innovates
through science and technology to enhance the quality
of the Corporation's products and its competitive edge,
thereby best fulfilling customer needs.

»  HTG is committed to providing high-quality, stable, and
durable textile products.

» Place customer prosperity at the forefront,
understanding that the Corporation's success is

directly linked to the satisfaction and prosperity of its

customers.
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RESPONSIBILITY TO SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders are the true owners of the Corporation,
and thus, it is the Corporation's responsibility to
generate profit and protect the reputation for those
who have trusted and invested in the Corporation. In
addition, potential investors also play a crucial role in
the strategies for growth and expansion. Therefore,
building trust with investors is vital for Hoa Tho's
continued success and development:

» HTG aims to rationalize dividend values to bring
long-term benefits to its shareholders.

» Ensure transparency in information, commit
to providing fair and detailed information to
maximize the benefits, and ensure fairness for
all shareholders, including minority ones.

» Commit that all the Corporation's activities will
safeguard the interests and future value for

shareholders.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

HTG recognizes that the support and trust of
the community and society are critical tasks
that contribute to the sustainable development
of the Corporation. Therefore, HTG is always
ready to participate in community-oriented
programs; contributing to support those in difficult
circumstances, creating opportunities for families
and individuals to advance in life, and sharing
material and spiritual achievements with the local
community. HTG carries out community and
social activities such as contributing to charity
funds; supporting the poor and children in difficult
situations; and assisting and sharing with victims
of Agent Orange, thereby sharing some of the

difficulties with the community and society.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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12 PARTNERS AND SUPPLIERS

The most important and core asset of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Corporation (HTG) is

its workforce. The income of the employees is a measure of the Corporation's development ; i
. Participating in the operations of Hoa Tho Textile and Garment Corporation (HTG)
value, creating a professional work environment based on mutual respect. HTG consistently : . : ;
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MANAGEMENT OF RAW MATERIAL SOURCES AND ENERGY CONSUMPTION STATUS IN 2023

Management of raw material sources

Energy consumption status in 2023

Fuel Type Purpose of Use

Quantity Fuel Price

Coal 6 tons 5,055,634 VND/ton Boiler heating
Diesel 5,514 liters 18,606 VND/liter Equipment
maintenance
Production (Forklifts,
Gasoline 178 liters 21,565 VND/liter Firefighting, Grass
cutting)
Gas 36,222 kg 31,268 VND/kg Cooking
Firewood 16,087 tons 1,326,324 VND/ton Boiler heating
Wood chips 1,590 tons 1,324,562 VND/ton Boiler heating
Rice husk 1,306 tons 2,158,187 VND/ton Boiler heating

Electricity consumption status in 2023

Power Sources

Value (VND)

Consumption

Utility Power kWh 54,159,181 96,204,336,030

Solar Power kWh 2,414,690 4,326,528,398

Water consumption status in 2023

Water Sources

Consumption

1 Water used m3 370,510

Total m3 370,510
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Waste management and hazardous waste treatment

Source of waste Quantity

1 Household waste Kg 302,977

2  General industrial waste Kg 1,020,040

3 Hazardous waste Kg 754
Total Kg 1,323,771

Energy saving and efficiency goals for 2024

Energy Saving Solutions and Expected Results

Expected Cost
(Thousand
VND)

Energy Saving Solutions

Expected Outcome
Implemented

Fuel Type

Purpose of Solution

Continue turning off electrical Save 30 million VND/

devi - Electricity Reduce electricity costs 100 - 150
evices when not in use year
: . Reduce electricity Save 30,000 kWh/year
Continue to use air compressors - .
Electricity =~ consumption, ensure Save 45 million VND/ 100 - 200

alternately outside peak hours safety for equipment Jear

Plan for replacement, upgrading, and supplementing technological equipment

Commitment and
Feasibility

Reason for New Installation,
Upgrade, or Replacement

Feature Description Installation
and Location Used Method

Equipment Name

TJFA 458A Rough Rough machine Uparade Imorove productivity and qualit Investment
Machine section P9 P P y q y planned for 2024
Ingersoll Rand Compressor center New installation Enhance productivity, save Investment
Compressor P - Replacement electricity planned for 2024
21C Tube Polishing  Tube polishing o . Investment
Machine process Upgrade Improve productivity and quality planned for 2024
TJFA 458A Rough Rough machine Ubarade Imorove productivity and qualit Investment
Machine section P9 P P y q y planned for 2024
LASKMI Bobbin and  Bobbin joining pro- New installation Enhance productivity and fiber Investment
Brush Machine cess quality planned for 2024
. . Bobbin joining pro- . ; Enhance productivity and fiber Investment
Jingya Filter System cess New installation quality planned for 2024
TJFA458 Rough Bobbin joining pro- Ubarade Enhance productivity and fiber Investment
Machine cess P9 quality planned for 2024
21C Tube Polishing  Tube machine pro- Ubarade Enhance productivity and fiber Investment
Machine cess P9 quality planned for 2024
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01 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTIVITIES IN 2023

According to the resolutions of the 2023 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors

Own shares of HTG

developed quarterly and annual activity plans and
(December 31, 2023)

Position assigned specific tasks to each member for supervising

: and inspecting all aspects of the Corporation's business
Number of Shares Ownership Percentage

operations. Additionally, the Board directed the Board of

Management to organize and implement the resolutions

! Nguyen Duc Tri - Chairman of the Board 1,123,185 3.12% of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of

Board Member, Directors. Quarterly, the Board held meetings to review

% NGB LT & General Director el Dlegelis the business operations for the period, identify completed

Board Member, tasks, and address areas needing improvement for the

3 Nguyen Ngoc Binh Depgitg'egt%nreral 273171 0.76% upcoming period. They developed plans and solutions

el IV ETT e for the next quarter to successfully achieve the targets

4 Tran Tuong Anh Deputy General 236,019 0.66% set by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
Director

2023.

Besides regular meetings, the Board of Directors decided
| B

5 Le Quoc An ndep&r;c:ﬁg';r oard 30,480 0.08% on major policy issues of the Corporation through written

consultations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS
2023 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS
In 2023, the Board of Directors held 43 meetings, including 5 in-person meetings and 38 through written consultations.

By the end of 2023, the export activities of Vietnam's Both the in-person meetings and those conducted via written feedback complied with the legal regulations and the

garment sector had notyetbeguntorecover, and businesses bylaws of the Corporation.
continued to face many challenges. Among these, weak

demand from the U.S. market, which accounts for over

Board Member Number of Meetings Attended Attendance Rate

40% of Vietnam's total garment export turnover, hindered
) ) 1 Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri 43 100%

the recovery and growth of Vietnamese export businesses.
o ) ) ) ) 2 Mr. Nguyen Van Hai 43 100%

Additionally, some suppliers are relocating their factories
3 Mr. Le Quoc An 43 100%

to countries with cheaper labor, particularly Bangladesh,
) o ) ) 4 Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh 43 100%

creating competitive price pressures for Vietnamese
5 Ms. Tran Tuong Anh 43 100%

enterprise orders.

Overcoming all these difficulties and challenges, under
the close direction of the Leadership of the The Vietnam
National Textile and Garment Group, the determination of
the Leadership, and the efforts, understanding, and support
of all staff, the Corporation successfully achieved the

business production targets set for 2023.

IHIHMH iy
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Resolution/ .
STT - Date issued
Decision number rate

Passage

01 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 16 16/NQ-HDQT April 18,  Implement a plan to issue shares to distribute dividends to shareholders in 100%
2023 2022.
- Investment policy in projects according to the 2023 investment plan.
Resoluti ? pril 29, 9
STT .es.;o ution/ Date issued R 17 17/NQ-HDQT 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent 100%
Decision number rate reviewed semi-annual report.
Approve the remuneration of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and
1 01/NQ-HPQT January 3, Summary assessment of production and business activities in 2022 and 100% 18 18/NQ-HDQT May 5, 2023 the salaries of the General Director, Deputy General Director and the Board 100%
2023 implementation of planned tasks in 2023 ° of Management
) 02/NQ-HPQT  January 10, Adjusting Resolutions on in-depth investment in the Textile industry. .. 19 19/NQ-HPQT  May 8, 2023 Ir:; ‘?t“e%h i ) Glisilol 1o Ui @ [i1ea e W EChanie COmEn jqge,
2023 Reason for adjustment: Change of investment location. ° i
May 12, - . . . o
3 03/NQ-HDQT Jan;g% 10, Agree on loan policy from Da Nang City Development Investment Fund. 100% 20 20/NQ-HDQT 2023 Finalize the list of shareholders to pay dividends in 2022 100%
Through signing and implementing contracts with related parties. These are
February 2, Agree on the policy of implementing the Hoa Tho-Trieu Phong Garment transactions performed regularly over the years, the transaction limit is less
4 4/NQ-HDQT . 100% - ; 9
o2 2023 Factory project Phase 3. 00% 2l ZNE 51200 A7 5, 20 than 35% of the total asset value in the most recent reviewed semi-annual 1A
report.
Policy for in-depth investment in the Garment industry phase 1 -2023. Total . . A
5 05/NQ-HDQT Feb;%azr%/ 10 investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent reviewed 100% May 26 Policy of investing in new trucks for Veston Hoa Tho Garment Factory.
semi-annual report. 22 22/NQ-HBQT 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent 100%
o ” Loan policy at commercial banks. reviewed semi-annual report.
ebruary 21, P ; ; ;
6 06/NQ-HBQT 2023 Disbursement limit: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent 100% June 2 Investment policy in projects according to the 2023 investment plan.
reviewed semi-annual report. 23 23/NQ-HDQT 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent 100%
Feb - reviewed semi-annual report.
ebruary 27, . . . . .
7 07/NQ-HDQT Closing the list of shareholders attending the 2023 shareholders' meeting.  100%
aHDQ 2023 g g g 24 24/NQ-HDQT June8,  Through the method of determining the reference price on the first trading -,
2023 day of HTG °
I Investment policy in Hai Van warehouse fire protection system. /
arch 14,
8 08/NQ-HBQT 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent 100% 25 25/NQ-HPQT June 13,  Approval of amending the charter and adjusting the Business Registration 100%
reviewed semi-annual report. 2023 Certificate ’
9 09/NQ-HPQT Ma2r82320, Policy on organizational structure and staff appointment 100% Policy of investing in automatic cutting machines for Hoa Tho Dien Ban
” 26/NQ-HDQT July 10, Garment Factory. 100
; . ; ) 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent
10 10/NQ-HPQT March 20, Policy to cancel or not implement the project to renovate the factory into a 100% reviewed semi-annual report.
2023 washing factory
27 27/NQ-HPQT July 10, Preliminary assessment of production activities in the first 6 months of 100%
March 27,  Policy to adjust the progress of in-depth investment projects in the garment . 2023 2023
R T1/NQ-HBQT 2023 industry in phase 1/2023 100%
’ Approve the implementation of the 3rd phase of in-depth investment project
) ) ) July 18 in the Garment industry in 2023.
12 12/NQ-HPQT April 11, Policy to approve the content for the Union to buy back Esop shares of 100% 28 28/NQ-HDQT ! 100%
2023 employees ° 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent
reviewed semi-annual report.
) Policy for in-depth investment in the Garment industry, Phase 2 - 2023. Policy of in-depth investment in the yarn industry in 2023.
13 13NQ-HpQrT AP less than 10% of total | h 100% August 2
/NQ- 2023 reOt'?a ig;essérf:;'.eg;in easlsr(:pgpt % of total asset value in the most recent ° 29 29/NQ-HBQT 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent 100%
view i-annu . ; ;
reviewed semi-annual report.
i Implementing Hoa Tho Trieu Phong Garment Factory project Phase 3.
14 14/NQ-HDQT Agglzy Approval of documents of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 100% August 16, P g g y proj .
30 30/NQ-HBQT 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent 100%
reviewed semi-annual report.
15 15/NQ-HPQT April 11, Preliminary assessment of production and business activities in the first 100%
2023 quarter of 2023 ? 31 31/NQ-HDQT August 28, Loan policy at commercial banks. Disbursement limit: less than 10% of total 100%
. . . (]
2023 asset value in the most recent reviewed semi-annual report.
Implementing rooftop solar power projects.
. . o .
32 32/NQ-HPQT  08/09/2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most recent .o
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reviewed semi-annual report.
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02 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

01 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Resolution/ . Passage
STT - Date issued Content
Decision number rate Start/End Date
Member Position as Board of Professional Qualification
i i i i Supervisors Member
33 33/NQ-HDQT Sggt;rgf;r E?(t)gerg the implementation progress of the strategic consulting 100% p
’ project. Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim . . Bachelor in Accounting and
1 Head of the Board Since April 16, 2022 .
_— . . . Khanh Finance
34 34/NQ-HDQT October 20, Preliminary assessment of production and business activities in 100%
2023 the first 9 months of 2023 . . . . :
2 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son Member Since April 16, 2022 Engineer in Textile Technology
i October 30, Approve the offering price on the first trading day on the Ho Chi o - -
35 36/NQ-HBQT 2023  Minh City Stock Exchange 100% Until April 15, , _ _
3 Mr. Vu Ngoc Tu Member 2023 (No longer a Bachelor in International Finance
Loan policy at commercial banks. member)
36  37/NQHPQT  November . o e e i o U 100%
: 15,2023 isbursement limit: less than 10% of total asset value in the most 8 . . - .
recent reviewed semi-annual report. 4 Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh Member Since April 15,2023  Bachelor in Finance and Banking
November Policy to adjust the progress of Hoa Tho Trieu Phong Garment
37 38/NQ-HDBQT : 100%
e 30,2023  Factory project. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETINGS
i December Implement advance dividends in 2023 for Corporation o
<k el 4,2023  shareholders. Advance rate: 25%/ charter capital. 1002 Number of Reason for Non-
Member Meetings Attendance Rate Voting Rate
December Policy to adjust the implementation progress of investment Attended Attendance
39 40/NQ-HDQT y ) P prog 100%

4,2023 projects.

1 Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh 4 100% 100% -

Policy on implementing the project to renovate the cutting
December Workshop of Veston Hoa Tho Garment Factory.

40 41/NQ-HDbQT 100% 9 9
4,2023  Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most 2 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son 4 100% 100% :
recent reviewed semi-annual report. e e
- . . . . easedtobe a
December Investment policy in sewing and yarn equipment projects in 2023. ) 3 Mr. Vu Ngoc Tu 1 100% 100% N
41 43/NQ-HDQT 13,2023  Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most 100% April 15,2023
recent reviewed semi-annual report. Became a
December Policy to buy new trucks for Hoa Tho Dien Ban Garment Factory. 4 Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh g 100% 100% member as of
42 44/NQ-HDQT 19 2023 Total investment: less than 10% of total asset value in the most 100% April 15,2023

recent reviewed semi-annual report.
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02 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2023 No. Content Meeting date Detailed content

The Board of Supervisors of Hoa Tho Textile Corporation comprises three members and operates based on their Reviewed the Corporation’s business operations

established regulations. In 2023, the Board of Supervisors carried out inspection and monitoring tasks across the for the year 2022 presented at the 2023 , .. . . strongly
. L - . o » . o 1 Meeting 1 March 1,2023  General Meeting of Shareholders. Reviewed the

Corporation, its subsidiaries, and affiliated units, assigning specific monitoring responsibilities to each member based Corporation's business operations for the first agreed on the contents

on their expertise. three months of 2023.

2 Meeting 2 May 10, 2023 Selected an independent auditing firm to audit All three members strongly

+  Following the resolutions of the annual shareholders' meeting and the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors the financial statements for the year 2023 agreed on the contents
conducted oversight and evaluations of the Board's and the Board of Management's implementation of the
resolutions passed at the 2023 shareholders' meeting
+ Ensured the protection of legal interests for employees, balancing their interests with those of the shareholders and 3 Meeting3  June 26,2023 Eeviewed the Corporation's business operations  All three members strongly
or the first half of 2023. agreed on the contents

the Corporation.
+ The Board of Supervisors supervised the internal control department's activities, regularly collaborated with them

to review and implement regulations, assessed the effectiveness of the internal control system, and issued early Reviewedthe C tion's bUsi i Allth b ‘ |
eviewed the Corporation’s business operations ree members strongly

4 i) o @eelET ], A for the first nine months of 2023 agreed on the contents

warnings of potential risks to minimize risks for the Corporation.
+  Reviewed the Corporation’s business operations and financial statements for 2022, and reported on the monitoring

results of the 2022 business activities to the annual shareholders' meeting in 2023.

+  Conducted financial inspections for 2023, supervising ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ACTIVITIES
the recording of accounts, and evaluated the accuracy,
) ) o In 2023, as the economy faced both recovery challenges and
legality, and honesty of accounting, statistical work,
_ ) ) _ economic and political instabilities, the business operations of
and financial reporting. Reviewed the quarterly
] ) ) the Corporation were negatively impacted by factors such as
financial statements of 2023 to assess the fairness
] ) ) ) high inflation, reduced selling prices, smaller orders, and fast
and accuracy of the financial data in accordance with
) ) ) o deliveries. However, with the detailed guidance of the Board
current accounting standards and financial policies.
] of Directors, Board of Management implemented various
+  Board of Supervisors members attended all Board
) ) ) ) appropriate measures aligned with the reality of the Corporation,
meetings to stay informed about business operations,
) o ) o achieving results that exceeded the planned business operations
investment activities, and contributed opinions and
) targets set for 2023.
recommendations to the Board and the Board of
o ) ) . The Board of Directors held quarterly meetings as stipulated
Management within their assigned responsibilities and
. by the corporate charter. The Board of Supervisors assessed
authority.
) ) ) the Board of Directors' activities throughout the year to be in
+  The Board of Supervisors held quarterly meetings with
) compliance with legal regulations, adhering properly to rules and
all members present, where they discussed the Board
) ) ) operational protocols, and meeting the business and production
of Supervisors's evaluation reports on the Corporation’s
. o needs of the Corporation.
quarterly business operations in 2023 and the Board of

Supervisors's report at the 2023 annual shareholders'

meeting.
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"I BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS'S ASSESSMENT OF
BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Board of Supervisors highly praised the business
results of the Corporation. Overall, despite the
difficulties faced in 2023 which significantly impacted
the Yarnindustry, the financial situation remained stable
and healthy. The liquidity ratios of the Corporation are
at a safe level, ensuring the capability to meet short-

term liabilities.

RESULTS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS'S
OVERSIGHT OF THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS, AND
COMPANY MANAGEMENT BOARD IN 2023

In 2023, the Vietnamese Textile and Garment industry
and the Corporation, in particular, faced significant
challenges that negatively impacted the effectiveness
of the Corporation's business operations. Despite these
challenges, the Board of Directors provided constant
guidance, supervision, and support to the Board of
Management across all activities of the Corporation,
leading to the comprehensive fulfillment of the planned

business objectives.

The Board of Management of the Corporation, united
in spirit and with high consensus, implemented various
measures suitable to the actual conditions of the
Corporation's operations. These included enhancing
product quality control, improving customer service
quality, organizing production to maximize productivity,
and ensuring a balanced capital supply for business
operations and investments. As a result, production
stability was maintained, employment was created, and

income levels were preserved to retain the workforce.

104 Annual Report 2023

EVALUATION OF THE COORDINATION BETWEEN THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND SHAREHOLDERS

Throughout 2023, the Board of Supervisors was regularly invited to participate in the Board of Directors' meetings
and was actively involved in evaluating the operational and business performance of the Corporation. They provided
recommendations to the Board of Directors and the Board of Management on issues that required attention. All
recommendations from the Board of Supervisors were acknowledged and implemented.

The relationship between the Board of Supervisors, Board of Directors, Board of Management, and management
staff was maintained as a collaborative and closely coordinated partnership, rooted in the principle of advancing the
collective interests of the Corporation and its shareholders while strictly adhering to legal regulations, the Corporation's
charter, and internal regulations.

The Board of Directors and Board of Management exercised their authority and responsibilities with a high sense of
accountability. They regularly communicated to discuss solutions to challenges with a focus on the collective benefits
for the Corporation, its shareholders, and its employees. Consequently, they effectively achieved a comprehensive

fulfillment of the goals and tasks set forth by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the year 2023.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND OPERATIONAL DIRECTIONS FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR 2024

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors will continue to focus on overseeing the activities of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management to ensure the implementation of planned activities in accordance with legal regulations, the
corporate charter, and internal policies of the Corporation.

The Board of Supervisors recommends the following actions:

+  Continue to prioritize market operations, exploit supply sources, and provide sufficient production capacity. Develop
the yarn industry towards stability and efficiency. The textile industry should continue to maintain key customers,
specialize in specific product lines, and improve production effectiveness linked to business efficiency.

+  Concentrate on production innovations to increase productivity and improve customer service quality. Standardize

the production system and quality management system to enhance product quality.

Implement major investment projects, focusing on in-depth
equipment investments to meet the flexible production
requirements of the units, enhance digital transformation, and

apply technology in production and management.

Strengthen management of cash flows, inventories, and

receivables to ensure sufficient working capital needs. Provide
early warnings to maintain and further improve financial
indicators and financial risk ratings, aiming to lead in financial
criteria according to the group's rankings.

Focus more on employee welfare and promote compliance with
traffic safety among employees during the Lunar New Year and
the spring festival of Giap Thin in 2024.

Strengthen the role of internal control and risk management
to identify and minimize negative impacts on the operational

effectiveness of the Corporation.
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03 BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Date of Birth

Name and Position

Mr. Nguyen Van Hai

(General Director) December 12, 1965

Ms. Tran Tuong Anh

2 (Deputy General Director) SRIE

3 (DI\(/Ie;u'\tl)g/J léayeenne'r\:agll(I)D(i:rgci:?Igr) May 10, 1976

4 (Dhg;ﬁgogzgetgrlgi?eacqgr) FEMEG @, U2
° (Ig/lef)‘ugagelheirglogi rir::?gr) OEiEEr 1T, e
o Mbreoutvedrecton.  MV1.1978

7 NbreouiveDrecton.  May15.1970
o Moy PIOoHOS  citer 9, 106
L M(rlésegcuu)(c?\?evDai?egtuoor)ng Hantiary2d,11966
e Tralr\1/|gS .(I'E\lxgel::ﬁ?vl—r;i:—:(;or) Septemberiitpi
17 Ms NouyenThiMinh o0 ber 11,1989

Hang (Executive Director)

Full Name Date of Birth

Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong Long January 21, 1983
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Master of Business
Administration

Bachelor of Business
Administration

Master of Business
Administration

Master of Business
Administration

Bachelor of Foreign
Languages

Bachelor of Economics -
Business Administration

Bachelor of Economics -
Finance and Accounting

Bachelor of Economics

Bachelor of Accounting

Master of Business
Administration

Bachelor of International
Business Administration

Bachelor of Accounting

Date Appointed to the
Board of Management

August 1, 2020

July 21,2014

July 21,2014

July 21,2014

August 1, 2020

July 21,2014

January 2, 2016

August 1, 2020

January 1, 2020

April 6, 2023

April 6,2023

Appointment Date

July 1, 2020

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TOWARDS THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors (BOD) supervises the Board of Management through regular weekly and monthly plans to work

directly with the production units and business departments to grasp the business operation situations. Supervision is

also carried out through the activities of the Corporation's internal control department.

Following the supervision, the Board of Directors issued documents requiring the General Director to immediately

implement solutions to address existing issues, boost production, and enhance the business efficiency of the member

units. The Board of Directors highly appreciates the unity, responsible attitude, scientific working spirit, and high

determination of the Board of Management of the Corporation, successfully fulfilling the strategic tasks and resolutions

of the 2023 Annual General Meeting and resolutions set forth by the Board of Directors.

UNG NGAY G1AO DiCH CHiNK THG G PHIEV
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATIONS, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

No.

10

11

12

Member

Chairman of the Board

Board Member 1

Board Member 2

Board Member 3

Board Member 4

Head of Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Member 1

Board of Supervisors Member 2

Board of Supervisors Member 3

General Director

Board of Management Member 1

Board of Management Member 2

Board of Management Member 3

Board of Management Member 4

Board of Management Member 5

Board of Management Member 6

Board of Management Member 7

Board of Management Member 8

Board of Management Member 9

Board of Management Member 10

Chief Accountant
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Remuneration (VND)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

93,333,328

93,333,328

266,666,664

93,333,328

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

39,999,998

28,333,333

11,666,666

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Salary (VND)

2,062,572,055

479,398,495

1,643,867,557

1,137,771,066

1,138,257,570

1,137,269,175

1,021,926,903

797,547,153

851,503,467

938,348,953

813,852,849

699,267,831

711,855,334

801,626,951

Bonus (VND)

611,111,111

66,666,667

66,666,667

466,666,667

311,111,111

311,111,111

311,111,111

311,111,111

258,109,259

PESISEEIEEE

233,333,333

ZBSISEEIS8Y

66,666,667

66,666,667

133,333,333
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATIONS, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Number of shares owned at the beginning of the

. Number of shares owned at the end of the period
Position/ period

The person performing the
transaction

Relationship with Reasons for increase or decrease
internal people

Number of shares Number of shares

1 Vietnam Textile Corporation 18,561,838 61.87% 22,274,205 61.87% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

Union of Hoa Tho Textile
2 and Garment Joint Stock 333,306 1.11% 413,227 1.14% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
Corporation

3 Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri Insider 935,988 3.12% 1,123,185 3.12% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
- Pham Thi My Wife 231,825 0.77% 278,190 0.77% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
- Nguyen Pham My Duyen Daughter 25,000 0.08% 30,000 0.08% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
- Nguyen Duc Thinh Son 25,000 0.08% 30,000 0.08% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
4 Le Quoc An 25,400 0.08% 30,480 0.08% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
5 Nguyen Van Hai 118,380 0.39% 142,056 0.39% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
6 Tran Tuong Anh 196,683 0.66% 236,019 0.66% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
- Tran Tuong Father 2,270 0.01% 2,724 0.01% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

Le Bao Ngoc Daughter 960 0.00% 1,152 0.00% Buy matching orders on the Exchange

- Cao Huu Duc Son-in-law 1,524 0.01% 1,828 0.01% Buy matching orders on the Exchange
7 Nguyen Ngoc Binh 227,643 0.76% 273,171 0.76% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
8 Hoang Thuy Oanh 156,640 0.52% 187,968 0.52% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
9 Tran Thi Hoa Chau 99,339 0.33% 119,206 0.33% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
10 Phan Quang Long 116,833 0.39% 140,199 0.39% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
Phan Thi Phuong Older sister 5,580 0.02% 6,696 0.02% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
11 Pham Ngoc Trung 115,525 0.39% 138,630 0.39% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
12 Nguyen Phuoc Hoang 44,618 0.15% 53,541 0.15% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATIONS, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Number of shares owned at the beginning of the

. Number of shares owned at the end of the period
Position/ Relation- period

The person performing the
transaction

ship with internal Reasons for increase or decrease
people

Number of shares Number of shares

13 Nguyen Van Cuong 79,662 0.27% 9,594 0.27% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
- Le Thi Bich Man Wife 6,850 0.02% 8,220 0.02% Receive 2022 dividends in shares
- Nguyen Thi Hoang Nghia Sister-in-law 21,479 0.07% 25,774 0.07% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

14 Nguyen Thi Thu Trang 17,128 0.06% 20,553 0.06% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

15 Nguyen Thi Minh Hang 36,211 0.12% 43,453 0.12% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

16 Nguyen Thi Tuong Long 45,275 0.15% 54,330 0.15% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

17 Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh 67,100 0.22% 80,520 0.22% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

18 Nguyen Thanh Son 98,150 0.33% 117,780 0.33% Receive 2022 dividends in shares

In the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023, economic transactions between Hoa Tho with internal people and related

parties were presented in the 2023 Corporate Governance Report.
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATIONS, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF
MANAGEMENT, AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Transactions between the Company and related persons of the Company or between the Company and major Transactions between the Company and the Company where related persons of members of the Board of Directors,
. . members of the Board of Supervisors, Director (General Director) and other managers are members of the Board of
shareholders, internal persons, or related persons of internal persons ; i '

Directors, Director (General Director) manage
Number of Resolutions/

Decisions passed by

the General Meeting of
Shareholders/Board of

Directors...

Number of Resolutions/
Decisions passed by
the General Meeting of
Shareholders/Board of
Directors...

Time of
transaction
with the
Company

Time of
transaction
with the
Company

Name of Relevant
relationship with

Name of Relevant
relationship with

Content, quantity, total

: Content, quantity, total
transaction value

transaction value

No. organization/

STT organization/
individual the company

individual the company

Vietnam Textile

Maijor shareholder

Resolution No. 21/

- Property rental, sales
agency,

Ms. Pham Thi My,
wife of Mr. Nguyen

1 2023 NQ-HDQT dated May 8, : :
Corporation - Parent company 2(?23 : ' -Re-lending transactions Thien Tin Duc Tri - Chairman Resolution No. 21/
Production and ' Garment embroider
on ADB loans T rading Company ' e Board of NQHDQT dated May s, * 70 - y
Processing garments, ' y . . I
Hoa Tho - Duy Subsidiaries; Resolution No. 21/ rentin asgeg']cs buying and Limited orrectors s the
2 Xuyen Garment Relevant 2023 NQ-HDPQT datéd May 8, sellin ! oods 'ma’zleriils orrector ofthe
Joint Stock organization of ye S o ' Company
. 2023 and machinery and
Company insiders )
equipment
Processing garments,
Hoa Tho Garment Subsidiaries; . ) 99 .
i Resolution No. 21/ renting assets, buying and
Joint Stock Relevant . )
3 ) o 2023 NQ-HDPQT dated May 8,  selling goods, materials,
Company - Hoi organization of )
o 2023 and machinery and
An insiders .
equipment
Hoa Tho Subsidiaries; . : .
) Resolution No. 21/ Mechanical processing,
Mechanical Relevant ) .
4 ) L 2023 NQ-HDQT dated May 8,  construction, trading of
Construction organization of
_— . 2023 goods
Company Limited insiders
Subsidiaries; . Buy and sell cotton, fiber
Hoa Tho - Thang Resolution No. 21/ )
. . . Relevant and yarn; buying and
5  Binh Fiber Joint o 2023 NQ-HDQT dated May 8, ) i
organization of selling goods, machinery
Stock Company  ~ 2023 )
insiders and equipment
; Subsidiaries; .
Hoa Tho Fashion Resolution No. 21/ .
) Relevant Sales agent, buying and
6  Joint Stock L 2023 NQ-HDQT dated May 8, )
organization of selling goods
Company L 2023
insiders
Processing garments,
Hoa Tho Garment . ] .
Joint Stock Relevant Resolution No. 21/ renting assets, buying and
7 organization of 2023 NQ-HDPQT dated May 8,  selling goods, materials,
Company - Phu o ]
Ninh insiders 2023 and machinery and
equipment
Processing garments,
Hoa Tho . . MR )
N . Relevant Resolution No. 21/ renting assets, buying and
8 organization of 2023 NQ-HDQT dated May 8,  selling goods, materials,
Stock Company - .~ .
insiders 2023 and machinery and
Quang Nam .
equipment
Hue Textile and Relevant Resolution No. 21/ .
. - Sales agent, buying and
9  Garment Joint organization of 2023 NQ-HDQT dated May 8,

Stock Company

insiders

2023

selling goods
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATIONS, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF

MANAGEMENT, AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Transactions between the Company and the Company in which members of the Board of Directors, members of the

Board of Supervisors, General Director and other managers have been and are founding members or members of the

Board of Directors or General Director for a period of 03 years come back here.

Name of organization/individual

Relevant relationship with the company

Time of transaction
with the Company

Number of Resolutions/Decisions passed by
the General Meeting of Shareholders/Board
of Directors...

Content, quantity, total transaction
value

Hoa Tho - Duy Xuyen Garment Joint Stock
Company

Subsidiaries; Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh - Deputy General
Director and Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong, Executive Director
are the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors
of the Company; Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh - Head of
the Board of Supervisors is currently the Head of the
Company's Board of Supervisors

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Processing garments, renting assets,
buying and selling goods, materials,
and machinery and equipment

Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Hoi

Subsidiaries; Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau - Deputy General
Director and Nguyen Thi Tuong Long - Chief Accountant
are currently the Chairman and members of the Board of
Directors of the Company.

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Processing garments, renting assets,
buying and selling goods, materials,
and machinery and equipment

Subsidiaries; Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh, Member of the
Board of Directors, Deputy General Director is Chairman
of the Board of Members of the Company

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Mechanical processing, construction,
trading of goods

2
An

3 Hoa Tho Mechanical Construction Company
Limited

4 Hoa Tho - Thang Binh Fiber Joint Stock

Company

Subsidiaries; Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh, Member of the Board
of Directors, Deputy General Director and Mr. Nguyen Van
Cuong, Executive Director are Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Member of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Buy and sell cotton, fiber and yarn;
buying and selling goods, machinery
and equipment

5 Hoa Tho Fashion Joint Stock Company

Subsidiaries; Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong, Executive Director,
is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Ms. Nguyen
Thi Tuong Long - Chief Accountant is the Head of the
Company's Board of Supervisors.

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Sales agent, buying and selling goods

Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Phu
Ninh

Associated Company; Mr. Pham Ngoc Trung - Executive
Director is currently Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Processing garments, renting assets,
buying and selling goods, materials,
and machinery and equipment

Hoa Tho Garment Joint Stock Company - Quang
Nam

Associated Company; Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri - Chairman of
the Board of Directors is the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company and Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong -
Executive Director is the Head of the Company's Board
of Supervisors.

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Processing garments, renting assets,
buying and selling goods, materials,
and machinery and equipment

i

/)

8  Hue Textile and Garment Joint Stock Company

Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri, Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh - Member of the Board of
Directors are currently Chairman and Member of the
Board of Directors of the Company

2023

Resolution No.

21/NQ-HDQT dated May 8,
2023

Sales agent, buying and selling goods
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m Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Corporate Information

Enterprise Registration
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock
Corporation

Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023

Certificate No.

0400101556

30 January 2007

The Enterprise Registration Certificate of the Corporation has been amended several times, the most
recent of which is Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0400101556 dated 19 June 2023. The
Enterprise Registration Certificate was issued by the Da Nang Department of Planning and

Investment.

Board of Management

Supervisory Board

Board of Directors

Registered Office

Auditor

Mr. Nguyen Duc Tri
Ms. Tran Tuong Anh
Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh
Mr. Le Quoc An

Mr. Nguyen Van Hai

Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Khanh
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Son
Mr. Hoang Duy Khanh

Mr. Vu Ngoc Tu

Mr. Nguyen Van Hai

Ms. Hoang Thuy Oanh

Ms. Tran Tuong Anh

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Binh

Ms. Tran Thi Hoa Chau

Mr. Pham Ngoc Trung

Mr. Phan Quang Long

Mr. Nguyen Phuoc Hoang
Mr. Nguyen Van Cuong
Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Hang

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Trang

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

Head of Board
Member

Member

(from 15 April 2023)
Member

(until 14 April 2023)

General Director

Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director
Managing Director
Managing Director
Managing Director
Managing Director
Managing Director
(from 6 April 2023)
Managing Director
(from 6 April 2023)

Ms. Nguyen Thi Tuong Long Chief Accountant

36 Ong Ich Duong Street

Hoa Tho Dong Ward, Cam Le District

Da Nang City
Vietnam

KPMG Limited
Vietnam

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation (“the Corporation™)
presents this statement and the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to
financial reporting. In the opinion of the Board of Directors:

(a) the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 5 to 57 give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Corporation as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated results of operations and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for
Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting; and

(b) at the date of this statement. there are no reasons to believe that the Corporation will not be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for issue.

_~==Orbehalf of the Board of Directors
200101550 \“\\
S N

TONG CO

cO PHAN

Feneral Director

Da Nang, 6 March 2024
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KPME

KPMG Limited

46th Floor, Keangnam Landmark 72
E6 Pham Hung Street, Me Tri Ward
South Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
+84 (24) 3946 1600 | kpmg.com.vn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hoa Tho Textile-Garment
Joint Stock Corporation (“the Corporation™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2023, the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended
and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for issue by the Corporation’s Board of
Directors on 6 March 2024, as set out on pages 5 to 57.

Management’s Responsibility

The Corporation’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable
to financial reporting, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Viethamese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Corporation's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG Limited, a Visinamesa one mamber limited liability company and a member firm of the
KPMG global organization of firms affili with KPMG Intemational Limited,
a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.
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Auditors’ Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the consolidated financial position of Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated results of operations and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Viethamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable
to financial reporting.

Emphasis of matter — comparative information

As described in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, comparative information as at 1
January 2023 and for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been restated in accordance with
the audit results announced by the State Auditor of Vietnam in the Audit report on the financial
statements, and relevant activities relating to the management and the use of State-owned capitals
and assets for the year 2022 of Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group (the parent company
of the Corporation) and the Announcement No. 126/TB-KTNN dated 2 February 2024 sent to Hoa
Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation. Our auditors’ opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

KPMG Limited

Truong Vinh Phuc

Truong Tuyet Mai
Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No.2594-2024-007-1

Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 1901-2023-007-1
Deputy General Director

Hanoi, 6 March 2024
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023

ASSETS

Current assets
(100 = 110 + 120 + 130 + 140 + 150)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Short-term financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments

Accounts receivable — short-term
Accounts receivable from customers
Prepayments to suppliers
Loans receivable
Other receivables
Allowance for doubtful debts

Inventories
Inventories
Allowance for inventories

Other current assets
Short-term prepaid expenses
Deductible value added tax
Taxes and others receivable from
State Treasury

Code

100

110
111
112

120
123

130
131
132
135
136
137

140
141
149

150
151
152

153

Note

6(a)

8(b)
9(a)
10

11

15(a)

18(a)

Form B 01 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

31/12/2023
VND

1,761,375,593,537

210,985,575,944
13,763.575,944
197,222,000,000

176,606,702,730
176,606,702,730

538,886,472,472
515,334,151,341
15,141,926,365
2,342,860,000
11,777,524,112
(5,709,989,346)

765,957,784,829
776,023,985,593
(10,066,200,764)

68,939,057,562
13,000,500,880
52,278,789,960

3,659,766,722

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

1/1/2023
VND
Restated

1,619,067,077,803

24,500,930,736
17.500,930,736
7,000,000,000

139,255,000,000
139,255,000,000

498,202,931,728
481,469,304,248
13,934,866.168
2,751,260,000
5,757,490,658
(5,709,989,346)

912,622,775,247
954,658,679,650
(42,035,904,403)

44,485,440,092
9,527,827,412
34,953,346,976

4,265,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023 (continued)

Long-term assets
(200 =210 + 220 + 240 + 250 + 260)

Accounts receivable — long-term
Loans receivable — long-term
Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Cost
Aeccumulated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Long-term work in progress
Construction in progress

Long-term financial investments
Investments in associates
Equity investments in other entities
Allowance for diminution in the value
of long-term financial investments
Held-to-maturity investments

Other long-term assets

Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets

TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200)

Code

200

210
215
216

220
221
222
223
227
228
229

240
242

250
252
255

254
255

260

261
262

270

Form B 01 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Kiss 31/12/2023 1/1/2023
s VND VND
Restated

746,345,151,927  794,059,324,512

5,698,452,545 10,651,446,545

8(b) 4,685,720,000 7.614.,280,000

9(b) 1.012,732.545 3,037,166,545

665,744,250.468  702,843,197,952

12 663.880.001,252  700.375.819,420

2,039,265,934,388  1,984,326,610,724

(1,375,385,933,136) (1,283,950,791,304)

13 1.864.249.216 2.467,378.532

12,780,311,016 12,593,614,322

(10,916,061,800)  (10,126,235,790)

921,944,983 17,435,128,396

14 921,944,983 17.435,128,396

26,116,541,850 16,359,634,355

6(b) 17,166,518.501 15.409.611,006

6(b) 7.755,702.000 7,755.702,000

6(b) (6,805,678,651) (6,805,678,651)

6(a) 8,000,000,000 .

47.863,962,081 46,769,917,264

15(b) 45,561.989.804 41,043,750,562

16 2,301,972.277 5,726.166,702

2,507,720,745,464  2,413,126,402,315

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023 (continued)

RESOURCES
LIABILITIES (300 = 310 + 330)

Current liabilities
Accounts payable to suppliers
Advances from customers

Taxes and others payable to State Treasury

Payables to employees
Accrued expenses

Unearned revenue — short-term
Other short-term payables
Short-term borrowings

Bonus and welfare fund

Long-term liabilities
Long-term advances from customers
Other long-term payables
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

EQUITY (400 = 410)

Owners’ equity
Share capital
- Ordinary shares with vating rights
Other capital
[nvestment and development fund
Retained profits
- Retained profits brought forward

- Retained profit for the current year

Non-controlling interest

TOTAL RESOURCES
(440 = 300 + 400)

Prepared by:

o

he®

Pham Anh Thao
Accounting specialist

Form B 01 — DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Code Note

300

310
311 17
312

313 18(b)
314

315 19
318

319 20
320 21(a)
322 22

330

332 23
337

338  21(b)
341 16

400

410 24
411 25
411a
414
418 26
421
421a
421b
429

440

6 March 2024

Nguyen Thi Tuong Long
Chief Accountant

31/12/2023
VYND

1,670,914,709,684

1,441,464,680,083
231.658.729,897
10,310,976,519
16,008,977,997
338,575.244,295
5,156,076,393
64,771,915
115.412,086,009
642.688.671,718
81,589,145,340

229,450,029,601
1.998.966,784
454,600,000
226,484,939,447
511,523,370

836.806,035,780

836,806,035,780
360,027,080,000
360,027,080,000
3.300,280.000
206.579,950.294
227.896,456.204
145,922,385,021
81,974,068,183
39.,002,269.282

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

1/1/2023
VND
Restated

1,511,687,829,377

1,238,126,539,172
247.458.763.604
13,225,730,141
36,476,439.431
311,860,046,804
5,896,536,953

24,333,865.250
530,686,157,557
68,188.999.432

273,561,290,205
4,882.461,916

268,678,828,289

901,438,572,938

901,438,572,938
300,030,750,000
300,030,750,000
1,752.940.000
178,026,784.321
377,815,114.784
98,761,374,269
279,053,740,515
43,812.,983.,833

2,507,720,745,464

2,413,126,402,315

= iy
TONG CONG TY'\,
CO PHAN
DET MAY

P.C""K Z
/ﬂ'ﬁ‘ﬁyen Van Hai

General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2023

Form B 02 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Revenue from sales of goods and
provision of services

Revenue deductions

Net revenue (10 =01 - 02)
Cost of sales

Gross profit (20=10- 11)

Financial income
Financial expenses
In which: Interest expense
Share of profit in associates and
jointly controlled entities
Selling expenses
General and administration expenses

Net operating profit
{30 =20 + (21 - 22) + 24 - (25 + 26)}

Other income
Other expenses

Results of other activities
(40=31-32)

Accounting profit before tax
(50 =30 + 40)

Income tax expense — current

Income tax expense/(benefit)— deferred

Net profit after tax (60 =50 - 51 - 52)
(carried forward to next page)

Code Note
01 29
02 29
10 29
11 30
20
21 31
22 32
23
24
25 33
26 34
30
31 35
32 36
40
50
51 38
52 38
60

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

84,105,696,267
158,353,864,802

2023 2022
VND VND
Restated

4,703,966,718,679  5,178,994,729.,409
3,757,144,627 456,833,533
4,700,209,574,052 5,178,537,895,876
4,268,076,376,832  4,564,510,426,208
432,133,197,220 614,027,469,668
84,155,373,745 97.314,884.450
69.386,809,704 81,115,346,231
38,519,684,807 24,700,898,629
2,399.707,495 1.503,088.717

127,250,606,534
152,319,897.679

206,841,907,687  352,159,592,391
10,280,757,806 6.435,880,836
6,312,135,168 1,343,384.668
3,968,622,638 5,092,496,168
210,810,530,325  357,252,088,559
37,001,410,572 77,992,134,643
3,935,717,795 (5,726,166,702)
169,873,401,958  284,986,120,618

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

Form B 02 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-B1C
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Net profit after tax (60 =50 - 51 - 52)
(brought forward from previous page)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Prepared by:

A

G

Pham Anh Thao
Accounting specialist

6 March 2024

Nguyen Thi Tuong Long
Chief Accountant

_ 2023 2022
Code Note VND VND
Restated
60 169,873,401,958 284,986,120,618
61 171,980,838.183 279.053,740,515
62 (2,107.436,225) 5.932.380.103
Restated
70 39 4,444 7.146

ARG N
cO PHAN
D r T MAY
HOA THO

guyen Van Hai
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

(Indirect method)

Form B 03 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Code Note %
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 01 210,810,530,325
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 02 123,954,055.538
Allowances and provisions 03 (31,969,703.639)

Exchange losses arising from revaluation of
monetary items denominated

2022
VND
Restated

357,252,088,559

127,218,158,438
39,920,401,596

in foreign currencies 04 8,240,828,272 10,890,005,636

Profits from investing activities 05 (23,915,961.872) (16,544,012,338)

Interest expense 06 38,519,684.807 24,700,898.629
Operating proft helose changesin 08 325,639,433,431  543,437,540,520
working capital

Change in receivables 09 (49,577,640.322) 20,605,834,126

Change in inventories 10 178,634,694,057 (96,599,449,895)

Change in payables and other liabilities 11 23,649,729.604 (157,795,613,479)

Change in prepaid expenses 12 (8,078,523.162) (13,460,521,273)

470,267,693,608 296,187,789,999

Interest paid 14 (38,474,535.011) (24,653,480,570)

Corporate income tax paid 15 18(b) (57,973,657,094) (55,187,867,925)

Other receipts from operating activities 16 32,639,419 381,616,911

Other payments for operating activities 17 22 (9,161,400,627) (12,480,734,299)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 364,690,740,295 204,247,324,116
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for additions to fixed assets and

other long-term assets 21 (94,998.377.573)  (140,540,098.,916)

Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

and other long-term assets 22 937,360,909 881,568,619

Payments for granting loans, purchase

of debt instruments of other entities 23 (271,534,478.,495)  (272,382,440,000)

Receipts from collecting loans, sales of

debt instruments of other entities 24 229.519,735,765 244,199,100,000

Receipts of interests and dividends 27 15,844,938.678 12,431,307,590
Net cash flows from investing activities 30 (120,230,820,716)  (155,410,562,707)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

(Indirect method - continued)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings
Payments to settle loan principals
Payments of dividends

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net cash flows during the year
(50 =20 + 30 + 40)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year (70 = 50 + 60 + 61)

Prepared by:
YD

Pham Anh Thao
Accounting specialist

Code

33
34
36
40
50
60
61

70

Note

6 March 2024

Nguven Thi Tuong Long
Chief Accountant

Form B 03 — DN/HN

2023
VND

3,725,391,182.603

(120,499,545,500)

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2022
VND
Restated

3,955,451,541.865
(3.663,012,509,094) (4.012.643.909.763)

(206,027.744,000)

(58,120,871,991)  (83,220,111,898)
186,339,047,588  (34,383,350,489)
24,500,930,736 58,586,417,754

145,597,620 297,863,471
210,985,575,944 24,500,930,736
0 200 J 1 5r

f L_J I‘I \|\1 \ ‘Ill
DET MAY '
HOA THO

Nguyen Van Hai
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

1.  Reporting entity

(a) Ownership structure

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation (“the Corporation™) is incorporated as a joint stock
company in Vietnam. The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Corporation and its subsidiaries and the interest in associates and jointly
controlled entities.

(b) Principal activities

The principal activities of the Corporation and its subsidiaries are to produce, trade, import and export
clothes, fabric, fibre. equipment, and raw materials for the garment and textile industry.

(¢) Normal operating cycle

The normal operating cycle of the Corporation and its subsidiaries is generally within 12 months.
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(d)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Corporation structure
At 31 December 2023, The Corporation has subsidiaries and associates:

% of equity owned and %
of voting rights

No. 31/12/2023  1/1/2023

Subsidiaries

1 Hoa Tho Fashion Join Stock Company 76.88% 76.88%

2 Hoa Tho - Hoi An Garment Joint Stock Company 54.18% 54.18%

3 Hoa Tho - Duy Xuyen Garment Joint Stock Company 81.73% 81.73%

4 Hoa Tho - Thang Binh Spinning Joint Stock Company 74.49% 74.49%

5  Hoa Tho Construction Mechanics Company Limited 100% 100%
Associates

1 Hoa Tho - Quang Nam Garment Joint Stock Company 30.61% 30.61%

2 Hoa Tho - Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company 20.00% 20.00%

As at 31 December 2023, the Corporation and its subsidiaries had 10,133 employees (1/1/2023:
10.339 employees).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting.

z
.";
A=

*
o)
<=

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, are
prepared on the accrual basis using the historical cost concept. The consolidated statement of cash
flows is prepared using the indirect method.

Annual accounting period

The annual accounting period of the Corporation is from 1 January to 31 December.

Accounting and presentation currency

The Corporation’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND?”), which is also the currency used
for consolidated financial statement presentation purpose. For the segment reporting, the amounts
have been rounded to the nearest thousand described in Note 4.
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Corporation in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Corporation. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases,

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at date of acquisition.

Changes in the Corporation’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as transactions with owners. The difference between the change in the Corporation’s
share of net assets of the subsidiary and any consideration paid or received is recorded directly in
retained profits under equity.

Loss of control

When the Corporation losses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary when
control is lost is stated at the carrying amount of the retained investment in the separate financial
statements adjusted for appropriate shares of changes in equity of the investee since the acquisition
date, if significant influence in the investee is maintained, or otherwise stated at cost.

Associates and jointly controlled entities (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entities in which the Corporation has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies. Associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method (equity accounted investees). They are initially recognised at cost, which includes
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the
Corporation’s share of the profit or loss of the equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align
the accounting policies with those of the Corporation, from the date that significant influence or joint
control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. The carrying
amount of investments in equity accounted investees is also adjusted for the alterations in the
investor's proportionate interest in the investees arising from changes in the investee's equity that
have not been included in the income statement (such as revaluation of fixed assets, or foreign
exchange translation differences, etc.).

When the Corporation’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the
carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Corporation has an obligation
or has made payments on behalf of the investee.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 —- DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group transactions, balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.

Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date,
which is the date on which control is transferred to the Corporation. Control exists when the
Corporation has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

Cost of a business combination (cost of the acquisition) is the aggregate amount of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the acquirer in the acquisition in exchange for control of the acquiree and any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired, identifiable liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than VND during the year have been translated into VND at actual
rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND
at the account transfer buying rates and account transfer selling rates at the end of the annual
accounting period quoted by the commercial bank where the Corporation most frequently conducts
transactions.

All foreign exchange differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

Investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are those that the Corporation’s management has the intention and
ability to hold until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include term deposits at bank. These
investments are stated at costs less allowance for doubtful debts.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Investments in equity instruments of other entities

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognised at cost which include
purchase price plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
investments are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value. An allowance is made for
diminution in investment value if the investee has suffered a loss which may cause the Corporation
to lose its invested capital, unless there is evidence that the value of the investment has not been
diminished. The allowance is reversed if the investee subsequently made a profit that offsets the
previous loss for which the allowance had been made. An allowance is reversed only to the extent
that the investment’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined if no allowance had been recognised.

Accounts receivable

Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost in the case of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct
labour and attributable manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
of inventory items, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs to sell.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries apply the perpetual method of accounting for inventories.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repair,
maintenance and overhaul cost, is charged to the consolidated statement of income in the year in
which the cost is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
tangible fixed assets beyond their originally assessed standard of performance. the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed
assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

= buildings and structures 10 - 25 years
= machinery and equipment 5 - 15 years
=  motor vehicles 5-10 years
= office equipment 3 - 5 years
= others 2 - 5 years

Intangible fixed assets

Software

Cost of acquiring of new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised
and treated as an intangible asset. Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 to 5 years.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the costs of tangible and intangible fixed assets which have not
been fully completed or installed. No depreciation is provided for construction in progress during
the period of construction and installation.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Prepaid land costs

Prepaid land costs comprise prepaid land lease rentals, including those for which the Corporation and
its subsidiaries obtained land use rights certificate but are not qualified as intangible fixed assets
under prevailing laws and regulations, and other costs incurred in conjunction with securing the use
of leased land. These costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease of 50 years.

Tools and instruments

Tools and instruments include assets held for use by the Corporation and its subsidiaries in the normal
course of business whose costs of individual items are less than VND30 million and therefore not
qualified for recognition as fixed assets under prevailing regulations. Cost of tools and instruments
are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 2 to 3 years.

Other long-term prepaid expenses

Other long-term prepaid expenses mainly comprise rental and asset improvement expenses, Other
long-term prepaid expenses are initially stated at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
a period ranging from 2 to 10 years.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
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Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.

Provisions

Except for the provisions as defined in other notes, a provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Corporation and its subsidiaries have a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

liability.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are recognised at issuance price less incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of shares, net of tax effects. Such costs are recognized as a deduction from share premium.

Taxation

Income tax on the unconsolidated profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of income except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the end of the annual accounting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the annual accounting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Revenue and other incomes

Goods sold

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the
possible return of goods. Revenue on sales of goods is recognised at the net amount after deducting
sales discounts.

Processing services

Revenue from processing services is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the
goods have been processed and the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the ordering party. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding
and the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Leases

Leased assets

Assets held under lease contracts of which the Corporation and its subsidiaries, as lessee, does not
assume substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases and are
not recognised in the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet.

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
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. Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
E 28 . aE 82 |8 828488 |S| & Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
M E ] " e e - LI Sl S ) = .
s S ESF 28 | =8 |2]| 2588 |g8| 2 (continued)
NE B8 )= e | = i BB 3 5 Form B 09 - DN/HN
gL g S E g E E % & §1 ﬁ L % E (Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
; o £ & = 3 dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
EQ S 5
;5 S = o 50
v .
=8 22 S g 5. Cash and cash equivalents
< ;;-, 82 s aa o
§ > 8 B3 =2 5 31/12/2023 1/1/2023
53 o = = VND VND
L N S
= % g Cash on hand 197,916,388 167,344,719
3 & & § § b Cash in banks 13,565,659,556  17,333,586,017
E 3 .“E &% o m’ E Cash equivalents 197.,222.000,000 7.000,000.000
=2 = =
i3 ;2 5% :
& £ 210,985,575.944  24.500,930.,736
(5]
(= e
= ST % E 2 As at 3] December 2023, cash equivalents included term deposits at banks with original terms not
= 3 S £ A = exceeding 3 months from the transaction dates. These deposits earned annual interest rates from 0.5%
8 88 % raia] 7 to 4.5% (1/1/2023: 6%).
= > E [~ e — -
S =
& 3
@ T2 § 6. Investments
=
s + E .
= A 8 — g (a)  Held-to-maturity investments
=] 5] =r % =
E = § A g 31/12/2023 1/1/2023
2 g' Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
=l=)
E - R %: VND VND VND VND
) =S 3 S = -
- ES2 5 N % Held-to-maturity investments — short-term
= - E E § = = = Term deposits 176.606,702,730 176,606,702,730 139,255,000,000 139,255,000,000
a
g o 9 Held-to-maturity investments — long-term
= 2 ag = *  Term deposits 8.000,000.000 (*) - -
g% 32 B3 5
— - 5 =] . % . . . .
= = E § & S \jﬁ Held-to-maturity investments — short-term included bank deposits with original terms of more than 3
5 = A | months and remaining terms to maturity of less than 12 months from the end of the annual accounting
g aE r— = () period and earned annual interest rates ranging from 4.8% to 9.5% (1/1/2023: from 4.9% to 11.2%).
oo
o =t "
g L; w § T S o E W Held-to-maturity investments — long-term included bank deposits with remaining terms to maturity
S 2 =R a2 2¢] KP of more than 12 months from the end of the annual accounting period and earned an annual interest
»E @ § E & B = - rate of 5.3% (1/1/2023: Nil).
- ol — b L
g E K 2 = — m : ; ;
2 g i E o I'he fair value of held-to-maturity investments — short-term approximates their carrying amount due
- = 2 o § to the short-term nature of these investments. The fair value of these instruments is determined for
g 3 § g " E A disclosure purposes only.
o W - %] =
=T = :N’n Q% 2 As at 31 December 2023 term deposit contracts with a carrying amount of VND31,000 million
?'a g = é o8 £ S '§ (1/1/2023: VND43,000 million) were pledged with banks as security for short-term and long-term
= E -;'.é % E E g 8 g k 2 borrowings granted to the Corporation (Note 21).
L] a = £ >3 n L o B =
o = g Z ;E o ; g 2 g S % 9 (*) The Corporation has not determined fair values of the held-to-maturity investments — long-term for
S b > = ;,:' 25 & é é.E 8 = £ E disclosure in the consolidated financial statements because information about their market prices is
= o £ S8 é é % o ;_j’ £ 2 g En = not available and there is currently no guidance on determination of fair value using valuation
s % I~ gn %1 %5 2 S£85 § 3 RS techniques under the Vietnamese Accounting Standards or the Vietnamese Accounting System for
o Z Sl a2 & eouls & A .2 enterprises. The fair values of these investments may differ from their carrying amounts.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
(continued)

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounts receivable from customers

Te

Accounts receivable from customers detailed by significant customer

1/1/2023
VND
Restated

31/12/2023
VND

(2)

139,903,797,596
91,560,398,308

27,158,560,082
86.827,098.,602

2
i,

Motives International (Hong Kong) Limited

Haggar Clothing Co.
Other customers
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At 31 December 2023, accounts receivable from customers with a carrying value of VND36,904

million (1/1/2023: VND22.024 million) were pledged with banks as security for short-term

borrowings granted to the Corporation and its subsidiaries (Note 21(a)).
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Accounts receivable from customers who are related parties

Hoa Tho — Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company

Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group

The parent company

Associate

(b)

159,181,030

185,200.698

The trade related amounts due from related parties were unsecured, interest free and are due within

90 days from invoice date.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(continued)

Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Loans receivable

Loans receivable detailed by significant borrower

31/12/2023 1/1/2023
VND VND
Related party — associate
Hoa Tho — Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company (*) 7,028.580.000 9,371,440,000
Other parties
Other short-term receivables - 994,100,000
7.028,580,000 10.365,540,000

This loan was unsecured, earned interest at 10.0% per annum and will be repaid according to the
repayment schedule within 60 months from the first drawdown date of 25 January 2022.

Loans receivable classified by payment term

31/12/2023 1/1/2023
VND VND
Short-term 2.342,860,000 2.751.260,000
Long-term 4,685,720,000 7.614,280,000
7,028,580,000 10,365,540,000

148| Annual Report 2023

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Other receivables

Other short-term receivables comprised:

31/12/2023
VND

5,514,556,964
1,479,481,000

Accrued interest income
Short-term deposits

Advances to employees 2,130,593,214
Provisionally paid import tax 339,838,279
Others 2,313,054,655

1/1/2023
VND
Restated

1,703,213,409

104,481,000
1,107.894,840
1,207,210,507
1,634,690,902

11,777,524,112

5,757,490,658

Other long-term receivables comprised:

31/12/2023
VND

Long-term deposits

Deposit for space lease 1,012,732,545

1/1/2023
VND

2,450,000,000
587,166,545

1,012,732,545

3,037,166,545

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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S R 2 & & | Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
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z EI 2 £ S g - & 1 | (continued)
T8k 2 E” 8 2 | s Form B 09 — DN/HN
23 ® g = A = o | (Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
o g .E ~ dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
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h P
S = & S &
=2y g ; - » 4
or | g~ 5 2 & 2 11. Inventories
3% 13 S -, S
§ b - =723 f‘% e e 31/12/2023 1/1/2023
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33 O S
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued) (continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC (Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance) dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
14. Construction in progress (b)  Long-term prepaid expenses
2023 2022 Prepaid Tools
VND VND land costs and supplies Others Total
Restated VND VND VND VND
Opening balance 17.435.128.396 14,352.120,576 ggg{li‘ng balance 3,840,258,372 Ig,?4g,232, 145 22.455,260,045 4!1,043,750,;5162
Additions during the year 57,697,268,032 126.391,204,924 Aln(;;['lt(i)sgstion - - 16,674,590,568 7,715,952,918  24,390,543,486
Transfer to tangible fixed t 74.210,451,445 123,308,197,104 ;
SRR BRI LIl ) ( ) the year (87,610,452) (10,230,699.200)  (9,534,547,597) (19,852,857.249)
Disposals - (19,446,995) - (19.446.,995)
Closing balance 921,944,983 17,435,128,396
Closing balance 3,752,647,920  21,172,676,518  20,636,665,366  45,561,989.804
Major constructions in progress were as follows:
31/12/2023 1/1/2023 16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
VND VND
Riektiited 31/12/2023 1/1/2023
Tax rate YND VND
Upgrading firefighting and prevention system 511,049,236 - Restated
Trieu Phong Garment Factory — phase 3 293,540,191 -
Spinning machines and equipment - 13,367,742.196 Deferred tax assets:
Others 117.355,556 4,067,386.200 Allowance for inventories 20% 1,059,602,624 5,630,211,563
Unearned revenue 20% 1,009,566,289 -
Allowance for inventories — subsidiaries 5% - 05,955,139
021,944,983 17,435,128,396 Others 20% 232,803,364 =
=
:ﬁ Total deferred tax assets 2,301,972,277 5.726,166,702
15. Prepaid expenses 0
ACHN Deferred tax liabilities:
(a)  Short-term prepaid expenses K] Allowance for long-term investments 20% (511,523,370) -
31/12/2023 1/1/2023 >
VND VND % Net deferred tax assets 1,790.448,907 5,726,166,702
Restated
Prepaid insurance expenses 3,227,281.381 3.071,969.,024 .
Tools and supplies 2.627,499,460 1,359,748,228 17. Accounts payable to suppliers
Prepaid operating lease expenses 1,366,700,925 498,110,110 . . Lo )
Other short-term prepaid expenses 5.779.019.114 4.598.000,050 (a) Accounts payable to suppliers detailed by significant suppliers
Cost and amount
13,000,500.880 9,527,827,412 withi payment eapacicy
' ' 31/12/2023 1/1/2023
VND VND
Hultafors Group AB 18.705,524,789 41,205,311.087
Other suppliers 212,953,205,108 206,253,452.517
231,658,729,897 247,458,763.604
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(continued)

Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Accounts payable to suppliers who are related parties

31/12/2023
VND

The parent company

Vietnam National Textile and Garment Group 5,387,148,375

Associate
Hoa Tho — Quang Nam Garment Joint Stock Company
Hoa Tho — Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company

7.600,436,555
906,163,602

1/1/2023
VND

5,023,685.489

18.462,790.590

Other related parties

Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company

Thien Tin Trading Production Company Limited

—a company whose key management person is a close
family member of a key management person of the
Corporation

5,026,026 7,859,651

69,698,988 161,737,569

13,968.,473,546 23,656,073,299

The trade related amounts due to the related parties were unsecured, interest free and are payable
within from 30 - 180 days from invoice date.

Taxes and others receivable from/payable to State Treasury

Taxes and others receivable from State Treasury

1/1/2023 Paid Net-off 31/12/2023
VND VND VND VND
Land rental - 3.659,766,722 - 3,659,766,722
Non-agricultural land tax 4,265,704 - (4.265,704) -
4,265,704  3,659,766,722 (4,265,704) 3.659,766.722

156 Annual Report 2023

=
2=
-

ONE

(b)

*)

19.

20.

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Taxes and others payable to State Treasury

1/1/2023 Incurred Paid/net-off 31/12/2023
VND VND VND VND
Value added tax 3,766,804,205 132,176,348,896 (131.247,551,570) 4,695,601,531
Import tax 56,980,038 3,620,893,507 (3.677.611,528) 262,017

Corporate income tax (*) 31,884,480,458  37,001,410,572  (57.973.657,094) 10.912,233.936

Personal income tax 768,174,730 9,088,440,745 (9.455,878,496) 400,736,979
Land tax - 6,206,733,710 (6,206,733,710) -
Other taxes - 1,238,163,767 (1,238,020,233) 143,534

36.476,439.431 189,331,991,197 (209,799,452,631) 16,008,977.997

Taxes and others payable to State Treasury as at 1 January 2023 have been restated according to the
report of the State Audit of Vietnam on Corporate income tax (Note 42).

Accrued expenses

31/12/2023 1/1/2023
VND VND
Operating costs 1,930,053,738 4,670,621,801
Interest expense 468,679,648 423,529,852
Electricity and water costs 2,207,788.650 136,727,464
Others 549,554,357 665,657.836
5,156,076,393 5,896,536,953
Other short-term payables
31/12/2023 1/1/2023
VND VND

Trade union fees

Advances from customers for payments on behalf
Dividend payables

Charity fund

Others

17,781.619,769
936,449,270
91,194,507,100

5,499,509.870

15,626,312,053
2,506.906,124
1,132,452,600
832,771,781
4.235,422,692

115,412,086,009

24,333,865,250
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
continued
U cno o o o « ( ) F
EE-. 3 888 S5 | 8| £ = orm B 09 - DN/HN
z E E - g ._?:“ g“ ff, P = i (Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
SRSES da 858 & | = B dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
I - l‘\ = cr- ‘_:- cl\ \.Dn r‘:- [ "
~ N Z (=] /m
282 => 3828 7 |&8| § 12
2 S % = SEF & |3 E < 22. Bonus and welfare fund
S 3 A “ B o
E r:j § 5 ‘é This fund is established by appropriating from retained profits as approved by shareholders at
=y o m shareholders® meeting. This fund is used to pay bonus and welfare to the employees of Corporation
5 o 2o 2 e i € and the subsidiaries in accordance with the bonus and welfare policies of the Corporation and the
S g & S—-g < w e & subsidiaries. Movements of bonus and welfare fund during the year were as follows:
53 S, 288 & |32 ¥ &
5 Sz 828 & |8 & @ 2023 2022
IR =% Sed = |o| 2 Ba VND VND
S ™ = —_— — vy = F\;
3% " e[ w B . -
=~ = ‘3 2 < % Opening balance 68,188,999.432 69,175,100,458
, w . .
b5 =S « B & Appropriation 22.528.907.116 11,170,216,362
E 3 B=s Other additions 32,639,419 381,616,911
= o & = = Utilisation (9.161,400,627)  (12,537.934,299)
s CE S o o e =
o ;' = NIl o — Ti=)
— P o ST o e Y e = o
ey © = Lo IS B o B o =) & = )
ol > E = E0 Closing balance 81,589,145,340 68,188,999.,432
] = B2
e b =} q*:
o e 5
= o =R E 2
= [&]
g = B 1 S = 8 ‘% 23. Long-term advances from customers
= =} =) =
2 2 e L3 @ = g , s
) g & Q o : =4 — cs Long-term advances from customers from Motives International (Hong Kong) Limited (*“Motives™)
< 5 o e = E 2 g : : g & .
b = o = = were used for the Corporation’s investment in production lines for manufacturing expansion to meet
e - @ o 5 - Motives’ demands. According to the agreement dated 25 April 2015 and the appendix dated 3 January
2 - é O & 2022, these advances are gradually offset against the purchase amount Motives has to pay to the
by S ~pa o ™ = g Corporation from 2017 to 2025.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
_ o ¢ - T - (continued)
EEE‘ S&5 | 3 SS | g Form B 09 —- DN/HN
z ) 5 © — o - sg S (Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
R E; i : = a g“ g f;» dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
|
25% £ 48 |8
o9 . oo =1
SN = 1 o S
S 8 = S8 | & & i ™ 26. Investment and development fund
=g — g e 2 o
= = E 2 2 & 7 S Investment and development fund was appropriated from retained profits in accordance with the
= ng] -’: i g ! r“:» oo Ly . . . .
§% =S % 6 o = " s 5 resolution of General Meeting of Shareholders. This fund was established for the purpose of future
% -: S 2l > f’; :} g» S s WS o business expansion.
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4 Sl L £5 50 | 2
38 3 EZ S*° |8
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@ = 2 = " < S S S S & 4
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29.

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(continued)

Capital expenditure commitments

Form B 09 — DN/HN

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

At the reporting date, the Corporation had the following outstanding investment projects approved

but not provided for in the consolidated balance sheet:

Approved but not contracted
Approved and contracted

31/12/2023 1/1/2023
VND VYND
176,940,000,000 43,100,000,000
56,180,000,000 5,742.000,000
233,120,000,000 48,842,000,000

Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Total revenue represents the gross value of goods sold and services rendered exclusive of value added

tax.

Net revenue comprised:

Total revenue
* Revenue from sales and garment processing
= Revenue from provision of other services

Less revenue deductions
= Sales discounts

»  Sales returns

= Sales allowance

Net revenue

166/ Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
VND VND
Restated

4,694.186,132,524 5,170,918,533,990
9,780,586,155 8.076,195.419

4,703,966,718,679 5,178,994,729,409

(3,275,248,195) :
(411,270,139) (456,833,533)
(70,626,293) -

(3,757,144,627) (456,833,533)

4,700,209,574,052  5,178,537,895.,876

30.

31.

32.

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(continued)

Cost of sales

Cost of goods and garment processing service
Cost of other services
(Reversal)/provision of allowance for inventories

Financial income

Interest income from deposits, loans and advances
Dividends

Realised foreign exchange gains

Other income

Financial expenses

Interest expense

Realised foreign exchange losses

Unrealised foreign exchange losses

Allowance for diminution in the value of long-term
financial investments

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Form B 09 — DN/HN

2023
VND

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

2022
VND
Restated

4,295,870,418,282 4,520,339.814,491

4,175,662,189

(31,969,703,639)

3,045.754,426
41,124,857,291

4,268.076.376,832 4,564,510,426,208

2023
VND

20,410,893,468
168.000,000
63,558,113,953
18,366,324

2022
VND
Restated

13,966,520,999
168,000,000
83,157,458,319
22,905,132

84,155,373,745

97.314,884.450

2023 2022

VND VND
38.519,684,807 24,700,898,629
22,626,296,625 45,227,907,321
8.240,828,272 10,890,005,636
- 296,534,645
69.386,809,704 81,115,346,231
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued) (continued)
Form B 09 - DN/HN Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC (Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance) dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
33. Selling expenses 36. Other expenses
2023 2022 2023 2022
VND VND VND VND
Restated
Penalties on breach of contract and late payment of tax 4,878.493,001 248,531,355
Staff costs 7,450.318,876 6.529,732,791 Others 1,433,642,167 1,094,853,313
Supplies and packages 727.270,099 889,095,934
Tools and equipment 357,982,822 1,371,907,662
Depreciatimcll c]l:arges 929,987,754 969,166,553 6,312,135,168 1,343,384,668
Outside services 56,720,346,717 102.622,143,662
Other expenses 17,919,789,999 14,868,559,932
37. Production and business costs by element
84,105.696,267 127.250,606,534 2023 2022
VYND VND
Restated
34.  General and administration expenses Raw material costs included in production costs 2,371,039,795,168  2,708.023,164,937
2023 2022 Staff costs 1,272,835,241,599 1,331,474,227,105
VND VND Depreciation and amortisation 123,954,055,538 127,218,158,438
Restated Allowance for doubtful debts - (1,440.,273,725)
Outside services and other expenses 580.415,634,787 773.039.414.472
Staff costs 83,273.524,891 75,980,195,111
Depreciation charges 10,874,778,161 9,922.454,527
Taxes, fees and charges 7,550,074,463 12,673,545.336
Outside services 29.912.428,071 27,556,257.273 38. Income tax
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts - (1.440,273,725)
Office equipment 3,521,756,836 2.839,423,508 (a)  Recognised in the consolidated statement of income
Others 23,221,302,380 24.788,295,649
2023 2022
VND VND
158.353.864,802  152,319,897.679 Restated
..‘"‘___-;_-....,‘\
J42]
B Current tax expense
. TY Current year 36.344.,432,271 77,966.,243,765
35.  Other income wil Under provision in prior years 656,978,301 25,890,878
2023 2022 G
VND VND = 37.001,410,572 77,992,134,643
A
Gain from disposals of fixed assets 937,360,909 906,402,622 == Deferred tax expense{(beneﬁt)

Penalties, compensations and rewards received
Others
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8,149,661,036
1,193,735,861

2,497,702,339
3,031,775.875

10,280,757,806

6,435,880,836

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

3,935,717,795

(5,726,166,702)

40,937,128,367

72,265,967,941

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2023 2022
VND VYND
Restated

Accounting profit before tax 210.810,530,325  357,252,088.559

Tax at the Corporation’s tax rate 42.162,106,065
Tax incentives -
Effect of different tax rate applied in subsidiaries (227,844,693)
Non-deductible expenses 735,404,414
Tax exempt income (513,541,499)
Effect of temporary differences not recognised
in prior years

71,450,417,712
(496,770,100)
(1,693,596,926)

709,532,225
(33,600,000)

(4.416,284,964) -
2,759,235,745

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 3.304,791,243

Tax losses utilised in subsidiaries - (73.165,234)

Under provision in prior years 656,978,301 25,890,878

Tax reduction (*) (764,480,500) (381,976.,359)
40,937,128,367 72,265,967,941

The Corporation is entitled to tax reduction under Article 21 of Circular No. 78/2014/TT-BTC
providing guidance on implementation of the Law on Corporation Income Tax. Accordingly. a
production, construction or transportation enterprise that employs between 10 and 100 female
laborers who account for more than 50% of its total regular employees, or regularly employs over
100 female laborers who account for more than 30% of its total regular employees, is entitled to a
reduction of corporate income tax equivalent to the actual additional expenses for female laborers.
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

31/12/2023 1/1/2023
Temporary Temporary
difference Tax value difference Tax value
VND VND VND VND
Deductible temporary
differences 5,268,572,959  1,053,714,592 23,994,419,752  4,798,883.949

Tax losses in subsidiaries 13,168,378.176  2.633,675,636 - -

18,436,951,135  3,687,390,228 23,994,419,752  4,798,883.949

Deductible temporary differences include interest expenses allowed to be carried forward for
deduction against future taxable profit in accordance with regulation in Decree 132/2020/ND-CP
dated 5 November 2020. These deductible temporary differences expire in 2028.

The tax losses in subsidiaries expire in 2028.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses in subsidiaries because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the subsidiaries can utilise the
benefits therefrom.

Applicable tax rates

For the Corporation

Under the provisions of the current Income Tax Law, the Corporation has an obligation to pay the
Government corporate income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits.

For the subsidiaries

Hoa Tho - Thang Binh Garment Joint Stock Company has an obligation to pay the Government
income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits. The current income tax regulations allow this
subsidiary to have corporation income tax at the rate of 10% for 15 years (from 2016 to 2030), be
exempt from income tax for 4 years starting from the first year it generates a taxable profit (from
2018 to 2021) and entitled to a 50% reduction in CIT for the 9 succeeding years (2022 - 2030).

Other subsidiaries have an obligation to pay the Government income tax at the rate of 20%.

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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35.

(a)

(b)

(*)

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 was based on the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding at the time of reporting, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2023 2022
(Shares) (Shares)
Restated
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year 30,003,075 23,625,000
Effect of payment of stock dividends (Note 27) 5,999,633 12,377,708
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 36.002.708 36,002,708

for the year

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 was based on the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders after deducting the amounts appropriated to bonus and
welfare fund for the annual accounting period and a weighted average number, calculated as follows:

2023 2022
Restated
Net profit for the year (VND)

171,980,838,183  279,053,740,515

Appropriation to Bonus and welfare funds (VND) (*) (12.,000,000,000)  (21,783.590,790)
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (VND) 159,980,838,183  257,270,149,725
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the 36,002,708 36,002,708
year (shares)

Basic earnings per share (VND/share) 4,444 7.146

The estimated appropriation to bonus and welfare fund from net profit for the year ended 31
December 2023 is the estimation made by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, based on the
Corporation’s operating results in 2023.
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40.

Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Restatements of weighted average number of ordinary shares and basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2022

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been restated due to effects of payment of stock dividends (Note 27) in
accordance with Item 24 of Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 30 — Earnings per share and the
actual appropriation of profit after tax to bonus and welfare fund (Note 22) as follows:

Weighted average Basic

number of earnings
Net profit ordinary shares per share
VND VND

As previously reported 255,348,714,184 30,003,075 8,511
Effect of restatements in accordance with
results of the State Audit of Vietnam
(Note 42) 15,705,026,331 - 523
Effect of appropriation of profit after tax
to bonus and welfare fund (13,783,590,790) - (459)
Effect of payment of stock dividends - 5,999,633 (1.429)
As restated 257,270,149,725 36,002,708 7,146

Significant transactions with related parties

In addition to related party balances disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial statements,
the Corporation and its subsidiaries had the following significant transactions with related parties
during the year:

Transaction value

2023 2022
VND VND
The Parent Company - Vietnam National Textile
and Garment Group
Cash dividends 129.932,864,500 14,615.621,000

Share dividends 37,123,670,000 39,462,170,000
Sales of goods and services 2,004,546 9,827,268
Purchase of goods and services 16,299.307,361 16,958.594,950
Interest expense 14,617,579,970 6,454,974,769

Purchase of fixed assets

Associates

Hoa Tho - Phu Ninh Garment Joint Stock Company
Sales of goods and services

Purchase of goods and services

Loans granted

Receipt of loan principal repayment

Interest income from loans and advances

2.904,263,006
91,332,736,950
2,342,860,000
922,611,235

32,600,000,000

2,216,473,534
89,428,986,872
9,371,440,000

642,135,599

Hoa Tho Textile - Garment Joint Stock Corporation
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(continued)

(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC

Form B 09 — DN/HN

dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Hoa Tho - Quang Nam Garment Joint Stock Company
Sales of goods and services

Purchase of goods and services

Dividends received through offsetting with liabilities

Other related parties

Hue Textile Garment Joint Stock Company — subsidiary
of the parent company

Sales of goods and services

Purchase of goods and services

Thien Tin Trading Production Company Limited —
company with key management personnel being a close
Samily member of a key management personnel of the
Corporation

Sales of services

Purchase of services

Key management personnel compensation
General Director
Salary and bonus

Other members of Board of Directors
Salary and bonus

Members of Supervisory Board
Salary, bonus and compensation

Chairman of Board of Management
Compensation and bonus

Member No.1 of Board of Management
Compensation

Member No.2 of Board of Management
Compensation

Member No. 3 of Board of Management
Compensation and bonus

Member No.4 of Board of Management
Compensation
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Transaction value

2023
VND

304,150,799
77,762,963,938
642,800,000

123,639,057
659,127,429

3,462,963
5,780,600,060

2,110,534,224

12,518,447,621

626.065,159

2,673,683,166

93,333,328

93,333,328

333,333,331

93,333,328

2022
VND

467,379,207
108,394,147,998
1,285,600,000

166,334,472
353,063,010

5,036,827.928

1,748,248.966
10,409,920,957
494,876,729
2,277,829,021
66,666,668
66,666,668
322,222,219

66,666,668

.f%
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Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
(continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)

Non-cash investing and financing activities

2023 2022
VND VND
Payment of share dividends 59,996,330,000  64,357,350,000

Dividends paid through offsetting with receivables
Interest income from loans and advances received through
offsetting with liabilities

Dividends received through offsetting with liabilities

1,415.,432,000 -

922,611,235

642,800,000 1,285,600,000

Comparative information

During the year, the Corporation has restated certain items in the separate financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance with the audit results announced by the State Auditor
of Vietnam in the Audit report on the financial statements, and relevant activities relating to the
management and the use of State-owned capitals and assets for the year 2022 of Vietnam National
Textile and Garment Group (the parent company of the Corporation) and the Announcement No.
126/TB-KTNN dated 2 February 2024 sent to Hoa Tho Textile-Garment Joint Stock Corporation.
These restatements are as follows:

= Increases in Accounts receivable from customers — short-term as at 31 December 2022 and
Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services for the year then ended in respect to the
export of processing goods, with an amount of VND34,008 million. Simultaneously, a decrease
in Inventories as at 31 December 2022 and an increase in the corresponding Cost of sales for the
vear then ended with an amount of VND32,420 million.

= Increases in Other receivables — short-term as at 31 December 2022 and Financial income for the
year then ended in respect to the accrued interest income receivable of term deposits, with an
amount of VND1,703 million.

®  Decreases in Allowance for doubtful debts as at 31 December 2022 and General and
administration expenses for the year then ended with an amount of VND2,016 million.

® Decreases in Allowance for inventories as at 31 December 2022 and Cost of sales for the year

then ended in respect to the inventory allowance for raw materials and goods in transit, with an
amount of VND10,485 million.

® An increase in Short-term prepaid expenses as at 31 December 2022 and a decrease in Selling
expenses for the year then ended to allocate transportation costs in respect to the goods issued for
sale but not eligible for revenue recognition yet, with an amount of VND400 million.

= An increase in Construction in progress as at 31 December 2022 and a decrease in General and
administration expenses for the year then ended in respect to the strategic development consulting
expenses under the Corporation’s strategic development project, with an amount of VND3,619
million.

= Increases in Taxes and others payable to State Treasury as at 31 December 2022 and Income tax
expense — current for the year then ended because of the above restatements with an amount of
VND1,548 million.

= Decreases in Deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2022 and Deferred tax benefit for the year
then ended because of the decrease in inventory allowance of raw materials and goods in transit,
with an amount of VND1,347 million.
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(continued) (continued)
Form B 09 — DN/HN Form B 09 - DN/HN
(Issued under Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC (Issued under Circular No, 202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance) dated 22/12/2014 of the Ministry of Finance)
A comparison of the amounts previously reported and as restated is as follows: (c) Consolidated statement of cash flows
2022 2022 2022
: (As previously  (Restatements of
(a) Loualidatod. balincd mivet reported) State Auditor) (As restated)

1/1/2023 1/1/2023 1/1/2023 VND VND
(As previously (Restatements of

reported) State Auditor) (As restated) Accounting profit before tax 337,440,897.567  19.811,190,992  357,252,088.559
VND VND VND Allowances and provisions 52421970488 (12.501,568.892)  39.920.401.596
. Profits from investing activities (14,840,798.929)  (1.,703,213.409) (16,544.012.338)
Accounts I:ecelvable from customers 447.460,848,580  34,008.455,668  481.469,304,248 Change in receivables 54.614.289.794 (34.008.455.668)  20.605.834.126
Other receivables 4,054,277,249 ~ 1,703.213,409  5,757,490.658 Change in inventories (129.019.832.732)  32.420,382.837  (96,599,449.895)
Allowance for doubtful debts (71,726,372,561)  2,016,383215  (5.709,989.346) (e el ce (5 0R0EILER W99 EeERl) (15460 531 275)

Inventories 987,079,062,487 (32,420.382,837) 954,658,679.650 Payamsits Tar ariditione to-Bid ssuts P i
Allowance for inventories (52,521,090,080)  10,485,185,677  (42.035,904,403) and other long-term assets (136.921,452.716)  (3.618,646,200) (140,540,098.916)

Short-term prepaid expenses
Construction in progress
Deferred tax assets

Taxes and others payable to
State Treasury

Retained profits
Non-controlling interest

9,128,137,752
13,816,482,196
7.073,502.669

34,928,852,934
362,110,088,453
42.601,741,636

399,689,660  9,527.827.412
3,618,646,200  17.435,128.396
(1,347.335.967)  5,726,166,702

1,547,586,497 36.476,439.,431
15,705,026,331 377.815,114,784
1,211,242,197 43,812,983,833

Except for the restatements mentioned above, comparative information as at 1 January 2023 were
derived from the balances and amounts reported in the Corporation’s audited consolidated financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022,

b Consolidated statement of i
(b) nsoli atement of income 6 March 2024

2022 2022 2022 Zan00107555N
(As previously  (Restatements of Prepared by: ; ){gd th ;?:\C_‘A
reported) State Auditor) (As restated) s 1 N
VND VND VND O:)/ | O PHAN
= /M‘ DET MAY
Revenue from sales of goods and ng g— 0745

provision of services
Cost of sales
Financial income

5.144,986,273.741  34,008,455,668 5,178.,994,729,409
4,542,575,229,048  21,935,197,160 4,564,510,426.208
95,611,671.041 1,703,213,409 07.314,884,450

CONG L/* e

ACH NHIEN Pham Anh Thao Nguyen Thi Tuong Long
' Accounting specialist Chief Accountant

—Nguyen Van Hai
General Director

Selling expenses 127,650,296,194  (399,689,660)  127,250,606,534 KPN
General and administration expenses 157,954,927.094  (5.635,029.415)  152,319,897.679

Accounting profit before tax 337.440,897.567 19.811,190,992 357.252,088,559

Income tax expense — current 76,444,548,146 1,547,586.497 77.992,134,643

Income tax benefit — deferred (7,073,502,669) 1,347,335.967 (5,726,166,702)

Net profit after tax 268,069,852,090 16,916.268.528 284.986,120.618

Net profit after tax attributable to

equity holders of the parent company 263,348,714,184  15,705,026,331 279,053,740,515

Net profit after tax attributable to

non-controlling interest 4,721,137,906 1,211,242,197 5,932,380,103
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Telephone: (+84) 2363 846 290

Address: No. 36 Ong Ich Khiem Street, Hoa Tho Dong
Ward, Cam Le District, Da Nang City

Email: office@hoatho.com.vn
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